
 

Page 1 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL 

a. Approval by a majority of the Commissioners present to allow Commissioner Carson to attend 
the meeting by audio conference, as she is unable to physically attend because of a family or 
other emergency as provided in section I-G-1 of the Board Rules. 

 
2. OPEN FORUM 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. APPROVAL OF MAY 20, 2019 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. April 15, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes  
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING APRIL 30, 2019   

i. Approval of Warrant No. 623 
 

4. ANNUAL MEETING 
a. Administration of Oath of Office by Judge Ann C. Walsh 

i. To Newly Elected Park Commissioner Lara Suleiman 
b. Election of Park Board President and Vice President 
c. Appointment of Board Secretary and Treasurer 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS   

a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 
b. Semi-annual review of the Oak Brook Park District Strategic Plan 

 
6. STAFF RECOGNITION  

a. None 
 

7. REPORTS:  
a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report  
b. Finance & Human Resources Report  
c. Recreation & Facilities Report   
d. Parks & Planning Report    



 

Page 2 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Ordinance 19-0520: An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Personal Property and Authorizing 

Conveyance or Sale Thereof 
b. Tennis Center Air Handling Unit Replacement Bid 
c. 2019 Amendment to the Oak Brook Park District Executive Director Employment Agreement 
d. Amendment to the Conservation Easement Between the Conservation Foundation and the Oak 

Brook Park District for the Oak Brook Park District Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 19-0617: A Resolution Amending the Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District 

and Conservation Land Stewardship, Inc., for Natural Areas Stewardship Project 
b. Resolution 19-0618: A Resolution Amending the Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District 

and Hagg Press, Inc. for Brochure Printing and Mailing Services 
c. Wight & Company Central Park North Concept Plan 
d. Agreement between the Oak Brook Park District and Wight & Company for the Central Park 

Design Development Phase 
e. Resolution 19-0619: A Resolution of Authorization by the Oak Brook Park District for OSLAD 

Grant Program Application for Central Park Improvements 
f. Resolution 19-0620: Resolution Authorizing and Directing Staff to Proceed with Rezoning of 

Property Commonly Known as The McDonald’s Property 
 

10. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON JUNE 17, 2019  
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Page 1 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL 

a. Approval by a majority of the Commissioners present to allow Commissioner Carson to attend 
the meeting by audio conference, as she is unable to physically attend because of a family or 
other emergency as provided in section I-G-1 of the Board Rules. 
 
[Call to Order the Regular Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners and 
ask the Recording Secretary to conduct the Roll Call.] 

 
Request a Motion and a Second to allow Commissioner Carson to attend the meeting by audio 
conference, as she is unable to physically attend because of family or other emergency as 
provided in section I-G-1 of the Board Rules.  Roll Call Vote 

 
2. OPEN FORUM [Ask whether there are any public comments under “Open Forum.” If necessary, the 

President may advise speakers to observe the rules set forth in Section 1.1VII B of the Rules of the 
Board of Park Commissioners.] 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA [Request a motion (and second) to approve taking a Single Omnibus Vote on the 

Consent Agenda, as Presented. Roll Call Vote—VOTE MUST BE UNANIMOUS. 
 
Then ask for a motion (and second) to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.  Roll Call Vote…] 
 

a. APPROVAL OF MAY 20, 2019 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. April 15, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes  
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING APRIL 30, 2019   

i. Approval of Warrant No. 623 
 

4. ANNUAL MEETING 
a. Administration of Oath of Office by Judge Ann C. Walsh  

i. To Newly Elected Park Commissioner Lara Suleiman 
[Judge Ann C. Walsh will administer the Oath of Office to Commissioner Lara Suleiman. Photos 
will be taken.] 

  



Page 2 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 

ANNUAL MEETING - continued 

b. Election of Park Board President and Vice President
[President Knitter requests for nominations to be made for Board President.  When all 
nominations have apparently been made, she announces that nominations are closed.  If 
there is only one nomination, she asks for a Motion (and Second) to elect _________ as 
President.

Voice Vote -- "All in favor".  If there is more than one nomination, a Motion (and Second) is 
taken for the first nominee.  Roll Call Vote.  If the first nominee is not elected by 3 votes, a 
Motion (and Second) is taken for the second nominee, and the process is repeated until a 
President is elected by Roll Call Vote.  Once a President is elected, the President takes the 
Chair, and repeats the above process for nominees for Vice President]   

c. Appointment of Board Secretary and Treasurer

[The President states that the current Board Secretary is Executive Director Laure Kosey. The
President proposes that, since the Board’s secretary has traditionally been the Executive
Director, Laure Kosey should be reappointed to serve as Secretary unless any Board member
has an objection.  If not, the President asks for a Motion (and Second) to appoint Laure Kosey
as the District’s Secretary.  Voice Vote – “All in favor”.  If there is an objection, ask for proposed
names for the appointment and proceed as with the appointment below.

Then, the President asks for nominations for Treasurer.  When all nominations have apparently
been made, the President announces that nominations are closed.  If there is only one
nomination, the President asks for a Motion (and Second) to appoint _________ as Treasurer.
Voice Vote -- "All in favor”.  If there is more than one nomination, a Motion (and Second) is
taken for the first nominee.  Roll Call Vote.  If the first nominee is not approved for appointment
by 3 votes, a Motion (and Second) is taken for the second nominee, and the process is
repeated until a Treasurer is appointed by Roll Call Vote]

5. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS [Discussion Only]
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications
b. Semi-annual review of the Oak Brook Park District Strategic Plan



 

Page 3 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

6. STAFF RECOGNITION  
a. None 

 
7. REPORTS: [Discussion Only] 

a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report  
b. Finance & Human Resources Report  
c. Recreation & Facilities Report   
d. Parks & Planning Report   

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Ordinance 19-0520: An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Personal Property and Authorizing 

Conveyance or Sale Thereof [Request a motion and a second to Approve Ordinance 19-0520: 
An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Personal Property and Authorizing Conveyance or Sale Thereof. 
Roll Call Vote…] 
 

b. Tennis Center Air Handling Unit Replacement Bid [Request a motion and a second to reject the 
base and alternate bids of Amber Mechanical for a price of $225,000 due to a contractor pricing 
error and their desire to withdraw their bid. Roll Call Vote…] 
 
The request a motion and a second to accept the base bid and reject the alternate bid of Kandu 
Construction, Inc. for the Tennis Center Air Handling Unit Replacement and to Approve an 
Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District and Kandu Construction, Inc. for the Base Bid 
Work for a Not-to-Exceed Cost of $218,000. Roll Call Vote…] 
 

c. 2019 Amendment to the Oak Brook Park District Executive Director Employment Agreement 
[Request a motion and a second to approve the 2019 Amendment to the Oak Brook Park District 
Executive Director Employment Agreement as presented.  Roll Call Vote…] 
 

d. Amendment to the Conservation Easement Between the Conservation Foundation and the Oak 
Brook Park District for the Oak Brook Park District Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary 
[Request a motion and a second to approve the Amendment to the Conservation Easement 
Between the Conservation Foundation and the Oak Brook Park District for the Oak Brook Park 
District Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary. Roll Call Vote…] 

 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS [For Review and Discussion Only.] 
a. Resolution 19-0617: A Resolution Amending the Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District 

and Conservation Land Stewardship, Inc., for Natural Areas Stewardship Project 
b. Resolution 19-0618: A Resolution Amending the Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District 

and Hagg Press, Inc. for Brochure Printing and Mailing Services 
c. Wight & Company Central Park North Concept Plan 
d. Agreement between the Oak Brook Park District and Wight & Company for the Central Park 

Design Development Phase 
e. Resolution 19-0619: A Resolution of Authorization by the Oak Brook Park District for OSLAD 

Grant Program Application for Central Park Improvements 
f. Resolution 19-0620: Resolution Authorizing and Directing Staff to Proceed with Rezoning of 

Property Commonly Known as The McDonald’s Property 
 

10. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON JUNE 17, 2019 [Announce the next Regular Meeting of the 
Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners will be held on June 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m.] 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT [Request a motion and a second to adjourn the May 20, 2019 Regular Meeting of the 
Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners.  All in Favor…] 



Page 1 of 8 

MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 15, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING- FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR MAY 1, 2019 – APRIL 30, 2020 (Notice of the Public Hearing was published in the Doings-Oak 
Brook Newspaper – April 4, 2019) 
 

a. Call to Order and Roll Call  
 

President Knitter called the Public Hearing for the proposed Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 
for Fiscal Year May 1, 2019 – April 30, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson 
and Knitter answered “present.” Commissioner Trombetta was absent.  Also present was Laure 
Kosey, Executive Director, Nicole Karas, Park District Attorney, Marco Salinas, Chief Financial 
Officer, Dave Thommes, Deputy Director, and Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning. 

: 
b. Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year May 1, 

2019 – April 30, 2020  
 
President Knitter asked whether there are any public comments on the Proposed Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance. 
 
There were no public comments made.  
 

c. Adjournment of Public Hearing  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, to adjourn 
the Public Hearing at the hour of 6:31 p.m.  

 
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by voice vote. 

 
2. CALL TO ORDER THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 

CALL  
 
President Knitter called the Regular Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District to order at 6:31 p.m. 
in the Recreation Center’s Canterberry Room.  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson, Trombetta and 
Knitter answered “present.” Also present was Laure Kosey, Executive Director, Nicole Karas, Park 
District Attorney, Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer, Dave Thommes, Deputy Director, and Bob 
Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning.  
 

3. OPEN FORUM  
 
President Knitter asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to address the Board. 
 
No one addressed the Board.  

  
4. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve taking a 
single omnibus vote on the Consent Agenda, as presented. 
 
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  



Page 2 of 8 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion seconded by Commissioner Carson, to approve the 
consent agenda, as presented.  
 
There was no discussion, and the motion pass by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 
APPROVAL OF April 15, 2019 AGENDA 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
i. March 18, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes  

b. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING MARCH 31, 2019   
i. Approval of Warrant No. 622 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS  

 
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications: 

 
President Knitter asked if there was anyone on the Board who wished to share  
communications.  
 
Laure Kosey said there is a proposed bill in Springfield brought forth by the DuPage County 
Visitor’s Bureau which, if passed, would increase the hotel tax by 2% in DuPage County.  She 
said the Bureau asked her if the Park District would support the bill, while the Oak Brook 
Chamber of Commerce asked us not to support it. She said the reason the Chamber of 
Commerce does not want us to endorse the bill is that they believe there is no guarantee that 
the additional funds would go to Oak Brook.  She also said that the Chamber asked her to write 
a letter of dissent regarding the bill.  Ms. Kosey said she believes the best approach is to do 
nothing and remain neutral on this issue.  She asked Board members that if approached by 
anyone regarding this matter, to please direct the person(s) to her.  She did note that she heard 
that this bill does have traction and will most likely pass.   
 

b. Recognition of Commissioner Kathy Carson’s Twelve Years of Service 
 

As this meeting was the last for Commissioner Carson, President Knitter and the Board 
recognized her for her dedication and great balance of pragmatism and visionary thinking that 
she has brought to the Board.   
 
Commissioner Carson thanked the Board for their kind words and said she really enjoyed being 
on the Board and working with such a great team.  
 
A picture was taken. 
 

c. Board of Park Commissioner Programming Ideas for Central Park North Fields with Wight & 
Company  
 
Patty King, Senior Landscape Architect and Lara Remitz, Landscape Designer at Wight & 
Company, provided a presentation to the Board regarding the proposed renovations at the 
newly acquired North Fields.  She said she would like to receive input this evening from the 
Board.  She also said that in addition to the Board’s input, she will seek community input which 
will consist of a survey to be sent to residents from April 22, 2019, through May 5, 2019, as well 
as three community workshops to be held on May 7, 2019 (7:00 a.m. noon, and 7:00 p.m.) at 
the Family Recreation Center.   
 



Page 3 of 8 

Ideas that Wight & Company have already on the list for consideration include soccer/lacrosse 
fields, a synthetic turf field(s), LED lighting, a pedestrian bridge across Ginger Creek, 
walking/biking trails with seating, bocce ball courts, fitness stations, concessions & restroom 
building, parking, picnic shelters, play equipment/challenge course, and signage.  
 
Ms. King said an OSLAD grant for this project would be sought.   
 
In regard to parking, Ms. King noted that agreements may be sought with nearby businesses to 
share their parking lots. 
 
Commissioner Tan said he would like to see something in the plan that would make the land 
usable in the winter such as curling or cross-country skiing.  
 
Commissioner Truedson suggested a field useable for cricket, a bigger band shell, and an area 
for drone hobbyists. 
 
President Knitter questioned whether a vegetable garden could be included at this site.  Ms. 
Kosey said she recommends that vegetable gardens be located at the Dean Nature Sanctuary 
is it may be a better fit for gardening. 
 
Commissioner Truedson asked if there has been any thought about building stands or 
bleachers near the fields.  He also suggested that illumination be installed to attract people in 
the evening.  
 
Ms. Kosey said she has already contacted ComEd about bringing electrical service to the fields 
which she said could be done via the Central Park West building. 
 
Commissioner-Elect, Lara Suleiman, who was present at the meeting, suggested offering 
fishing. 
 
Commissioner Carson suggested planting trees. 
 
President Knitter said she would like to see the trails wind through the property rather than 
simply looping around the perimeter.  Ms. King confirmed that the paths would definitely wind 
through the property. 
 
President Knitter also suggested that the site could accommodate activities such as QR code 
scanning and geocaching in order to attract 10-12-year-old kids.  
 
Commissioner Tan suggested planting an ornamental garden for outdoor weddings and other 
ceremonies.  
 
Commissioner Truedson said it is important that conduit be installed for any future lighting 
needs. 
 
Commissioner Tan suggested the possibility of using Ginger Creek for watering the fields and 
asked staff to check with the Village to see if this is possible.  
 
Ms. King said there has been discussion about eventually digging a well in the future for 
watering.  
 
Commissioner Truedson suggested offering bike rentals.  Ms. Kosey said staff has already been 
inquiring about this as well as including Tesla charging stations at the future parking lot at the 
fields.  
 
Commissioner Truedson also said that security cameras should be included.  



Page 4 of 8 

 
Ms. King thanked the Board for their suggestions and concluded her presentation.  
 

6. STAFF RECOGNITION  
 

a. Allegra Wozniak, new Aquatic Supervisor 
 
President Knitter and the Board welcomed Ms. Wozniak to her new position as Aquatic 
Supervisor which will focus on the village’s Bath and Tennis outdoor pool when it is open and 
the Aquatic Center for the balance of the year. Ms. Wozniak was previously working at the 
Aquatic Center on a part-time basis.  
 

7. REPORTS:  
 

a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report  
 
Laura Kosey presented her report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
There were no questions or comments regarding Ms. Kosey’s report. 
 

b. Finance & Human Resources Report  
 
Finances are doing well.  All three funds have surplus.   
 
President Knitter asked staff why preschool programming is not doing well.   
 
Ms. Kosey said there is less enrollment not only here but throughout Oak Brook.  Karen 
Spandikow, Assistant Director of Recreation, who was in the audience, said that we may scale 
back to only one full-time class next year, but have been pushing hard on preschool promotions 
for next year, nonetheless.    
 
Mr. Salinas said the Park District has recently signed new agreements for electricity and natural 
gas providers, which will be saving $20,000 in electricity over four years and $17,000 in natural 
gas over three years. He also noted that for participation in the emergency test program, which 
we enrolled in last year, the Park District has been saving $3,000 per month in electricity.  
 
Mr. Salinas discussed a necessary amendment to the 2018-2019 budget regarding the recent 
purchase of the North Fields.  He said the issuance of bonds for the purchase of this property 
occurred after the budget was approved and the amendment will update the budget to reflect 
this purchase.   
 
There were no further questions or comments regarding Mr. Salinas’s report. 
 

c. Recreation & Facilities Report   
 

Dave Thommes presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Mr. Thommes highlighted upcoming events including the Underwater Egg Hunt, the Bunny 
Basket Delivery, and the Pink 5K Run.  
 
There were no questions or comments regarding Mr. Thommes’s report. 

  



Page 5 of 8 

 
d. Parks & Planning Report   

Bob Johnson presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Mr. Johnson said the company, Trugreen, will be treating the soccer fields soon in order to 
improve the quality of soccer fields. 
 
Mr. Johnson said there has been no update received from IDOT regarding the land acquisition 
at the Dean Nature Sanctuary.  He said we are still waiting for their appraisal.  

There were no questions or comments regarding Mr. Johnson’s report. 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance 19-0415: An Ordinance Setting Forth the Budget and Making Appropriations of Sums 
of Money for all of the Necessary Expenditures of the Oak Brook Park District of Cook and 
DuPage Counties, Illinois, for the Corporate Purpose for the Fiscal Year Beginning May 1, 2019 
and Ending April 30,2020 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, to approve 
Ordinance 19-0415: An ordinance setting forth the budget and making appropriations of sums of 
money for all of the necessary expenditures of the Oak Brook Park District of Cook and DuPage 
Counties, Illinois, for the corporate purpose for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2019 and ending 
April 30, 2020.   
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  

 
b. Ordinance 19-0416: An Ordinance for Transferring Anticipated Unexpended Funds from Certain 

Appropriation Items to Other Items of Appropriation  
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, to approve 
Ordinance 19-0416: An Ordinance for transferring anticipated unexpended funds from certain 
appropriation items to other items of appropriation.  
 
 There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 
 

c. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 and amended April 16, 
2018, by and between the Board of Education of Butler School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park 
District and the LaGrange Area Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool 
Program at The Oak Brook Park District Recreation Center. 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, to approve 
the renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 and amended April 16, 
2018, by and between the Board of Education of Butler School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park 
District and the LaGrange Area Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool 
Program at The Oak Brook Park District Recreation Center. 
  



Page 6 of 8 

There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
  

Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 

d. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, By and Between the 
Board of Education of Butler School District #53 and the Oak Brook Park District for a Before 
and After School Program at Brook Forest Elementary School. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to approve the 
Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, by and between the Board 
of Education of Butler School District #53 and the Oak Brook Park District for a before and after 
school program at Brook Forest Elementary School.   
  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 

e. Resolution 19-0417: A Resolution Amending the Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park 
District and Next Generation Screen Printing and Apparel, Inc. for Apparel Screen Printing and 
Embroidery Services  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve 
Resolution 19-0417: A Resolution amending the agreement between the Oak Brook Park District 
and Next Generation Screen Printing and Apparel, Inc. for apparel screen printing and embroidery 
services.   
  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance 19-0418: Supplemental Appropriation Ordinance of the Oak Brook Park District for 
the Fiscal Year Beginning May 1, 2018 and Ending April 30, 2019 *** Requires waiving the 
Board Rules to approve at this meeting.  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to waive the 
board rules to approve at this Meeting Ordinance 19-0418: Supplemental Appropriation 
Ordinance of the Oak Brook Park District for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2018, and ending 
April 30, 2019.  
  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

   
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to approve 
Ordinance 19-0418: Supplemental Appropriation Ordinance of the Oak Brook Park District for the 
fiscal year beginning May 1, 2018 and ending April 30, 2019. 



Page 7 of 8 

Mr. Salinas said this ordinance allows the Park District to appropriate the fees and funds used to 
purchase the North Fields.  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 

b. Ordinance 19-0520: An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Personal Property and Authorizing 
Conveyance or Sale Thereof  
 
This matter was presented for review and discussion only. 
 
There was no discussion regarding this matter.  
 

c. Tennis Center Air Handling Unit Replacement Bid  
 

This matter was presented for review and discussion only. 
 
Ms. Kosey said we will have a recommendation for a contractor for this work at next month’s 
meeting as the bidding process is currently underway.  
 
There was no further discussion regarding this matter.  
 

d. Family Recreation Center Drop Ceiling Replacement  
 
This matter was presented for review and discussion only. 
 
Ms. Kosey said the tile replacement will be in the main lobby area. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding this matter.  

 
10. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: For the purpose of discussing and approving Closed Meeting 

Minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21), for the Semi Annual Review of Closed Meeting Minutes 
pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2.06(d), and for the Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, 
Performance, or Dismissal of Specific Employees of the District pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) of the 
Open Meetings Act.  
 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to adjourn the Open 
Session of the Regular Board Meeting at the hour of 7:34 p.m. and convene to the Closed Session for 
the purpose of discussing and approving Closed Meeting Minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21), for 
the semi-annual review of closed meeting minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2.06(d), and for the 
appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of 
the District pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act.  

  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  

  



Page 8 of 8 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
a. Discussion and Approval of Closed Meeting Minutes, December 17, 2018 
b. Semi-Annual Review of Closed Meeting Minutes for Release 

i. Resolution 19-0521: A Resolution Regarding the Review of Minutes for Closed Meetings 
January 1989 – December 31, 2018 

c. Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal of Specific 
Employees of the District 
 

12. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION  
 

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to adjourn the 
Closed Session and reconvene the Open Session of the April 15, 2019 Regular Meeting at the hour of 
7:51 p.m.  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by roll call vote. 

  
Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Tan, Truedson and President Knitter  
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Trombetta  
 

13. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2019  
 
 

14. President Knitter announced the next Regular Meeting of The Oak Brook Park District Board of Park 
Commissioners will be held on May 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m.  
 

15. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion seconded by Commissioner Tan, to adjourn the regular 
meeting at the hour of 7:51 p.m.  
 
There was no discussion, and the motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 



 Original

Annual

Budget 

 Amended

Annual

Budget 

 April

2019

Actual 

 Year-To-Date

Actual Encumbered

Year-To-Date

Actual +

Encumbered

 Y-T-D Actual, 

as a % of 

Amended 

Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year

2017/2018

Year-To-Date 

Actual

2018/2019 Y-T-D 

Actual Higher/

(Lower) than 

2017/2018 Y-T-D

Percent 

Change

REVENUES

 Administration  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                    -  $                  -  $                   - N/A  $   1,615,916 (1,615,916)$         -100.0%

 Finance 

Property Taxes      1,305,765      1,305,765                    -          1,378,736                    -         1,378,736 105.6%                     -                1,378,736 N/A

Personal Prop. Repl. Taxes           84,012           84,012           21,142              87,182                    -              87,182 103.8%                     -                      87,182 N/A

Investment Income           11,000           11,000                 931              11,524                    -              11,524 104.8%                     -                      11,524 N/A

Other             3,000              3,000              1,630              20,176                    -              20,176 672.5%                     -                      20,176 N/A

 Central Park           97,000           97,000           23,530           124,801                    -            124,801 128.7%          123,352                      1,448 1.2%

 Dean Property                    -                        -                    -                  3,000                    -                 3,000 N/A                     -                        3,000 N/A

 Building-Recreation Center         978,204         978,204         135,523           893,546                    -            893,546 91.3%          912,403                  (18,857) -2.1%

 Central Park West           80,625           80,625              1,611              65,823                    -              65,823 81.6%            73,737                    (7,914) -10.7%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,559,606$  2,559,606$  184,367$     2,584,787$     $                -   2,584,787$   101.0% 2,725,408$   (140,622)$            -5.2%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 436,174$     440,639$     29,984$        413,916$         $         5,308  $      419,224 93.9% 816,701$       $            (402,785) -49.3%

 Finance 494,615       468,619        30,362          393,825                      3,040 396,865         84.0% -                      393,825                N/A

 Central Park North -                    3,900            328               328                                      - 328                8.4% -                      328                       N/A

 Central Park 605,602       605,602        37,351          534,470          17,096          551,566         88.3% 569,134         (34,664)                 -6.1%

 Saddlebrook Park 30,262          30,262          1,012            15,673            1,897            17,570           51.8% 11,459           4,214                    36.8%

 Forest Glen Park 27,961          27,961          932               22,667            1,994            24,661           81.1% 18,391           4,276                    23.3%

 Chillem Park 9,621            9,621            380               5,025              552               5,577             52.2% 5,628             (603)                      -10.7%

 Dean Property 10,641          13,191          150               8,212              1,096            9,308             62.3% 13,584           (5,373)                   -39.5%

 Professional Services 62,200          62,200          4,706            41,834            -                    41,834           67.3% 38,607           3,227                    8.4%

 Contracts- Maint. DNS 27,000          27,000          4,827            10,278            -                    10,278           38.1% 24,542           (14,264)                 -58.1%

 Building-Recreation Center 923,174       931,617        58,893          803,098          15,537          818,635         86.2% 852,563         (49,465)                 -5.8%

 Central Park West 63,066          69,704          3,504            43,279            1,137            44,416           62.1% 38,890           4,389                    11.3%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,690,316$  2,690,316$  172,429$     2,292,605$     $       47,658 2,340,263$   85.2% 2,389,498$   (96,893)$              -4.1%

 TRANSFERS OUT 150,000$     150,000$     -$              150,000$         $                -    $      150,000 100.0% 410,000$      (260,000)$            N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

AND TRANSFERS OUT
2,840,316$  2,840,316$  172,429$     2,442,605$     $       47,658 2,490,263$   86.0% 2,799,498$   (356,893)$            -12.7%

REVENUES OVER 

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

AND TRANSFERS OUT

(280,710)$    (280,710)$    11,938$       142,182$        $     (47,658) 94,524$         -50.7% (74,090)$       216,271$             -291.9%

Note> Fiscal year 2018/2019 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When comparing
current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/-10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% 

change

General Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through April 30, 2019 and 2018

100.00% completed (12 out of 12 months)

Fiscal Year 2018/2019- Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



 Original

Annual

Budget 

 Amended

Annual

Budget 

 April

2019

Actual 

 Year-To-Date

Actual  Encumbered 

 Year-To-Date

Actual +

Encumbered 

 Y-T-D Actual, 

as a % of 

Amended 

Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year

2017/2018

Year-To-Date 

Actual

2018/2019 Y-T-D 

Actual Higher/

(Lower) than 

2017/2018 Y-T-D

Percent 

Change

REVENUES

 Administration 

Property Taxes  $     900,000  $     900,000  $                -    $        890,548  $                   -    $         890,548 98.9%  $      881,023  $                  9,525 1.1%

Personal Prop. Repl. Taxes            26,448            26,448             6,656              27,446                       -                  27,446 103.8%             30,349                    (2,903) -9.6%

Investment Income            12,000            12,000             1,975              17,071                       -                  17,071 142.3%             15,863                      1,209 7.6%

Other              3,000              3,000                 245                 1,741                       -                    1,741 58.0%               2,041                        (299) -14.7%

 Fitness Center          857,121          857,121           70,324            842,827                       -                842,827 98.3%           813,554                    29,273 3.6%

 Aquatic Center          485,062          485,062           36,898            492,888                       -                492,888 101.6%           482,394                    10,494 2.2%

 Aquatic Recreation Prog.          574,212          574,212             7,388            516,851                       -                516,851 90.0%           504,407                    12,443 2.5%

 Children's Programs            90,890            90,890             1,405            105,454                       -                105,454 116.0%           101,706                      3,748 3.7%

 Preschool Programs          313,993          313,993           26,141            272,172                       -                272,172 86.7%           324,830                  (52,658) -16.2%

 Youth Programs          182,733          182,733             4,327            204,447                       -                204,447 111.9%           188,074                    16,373 8.7%

 Adult Programs            52,490            52,490             1,838              52,327                       -                  52,327 99.7%             52,623                        (296) -0.6%

 Pioneer Programs            84,500            84,500                 465              64,388                       -                  64,388 76.2%             85,121                  (20,733) -24.4%

 Special Events and Trips            87,715            87,715               (109)              96,764                       -                  96,764 110.3%             75,523                    21,241 28.1%

 Marketing            24,000            24,000             4,250              62,983                       -                  62,983 262.4%           110,975                  (47,992) -43.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,694,164$  3,694,164$  161,802$     3,647,906$     $                   -   3,647,906$      98.7% 3,668,482$   (20,576)$              -0.6%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 871,020$      858,082$      82,725$       694,847$         $          14,914  $         709,761 81.0% 713,965$        $              (19,118) -2.7%

 Fitness Center 687,190        691,905        62,969         609,503          7,870               617,374            88.1% 636,953         (27,449)                 -4.3%

 Aquatic Center 806,398        810,698        69,412         699,591          24,653             724,244            86.3% 769,957         (70,366)                 -9.1%

 Aquatic Recreation Prog. 297,857        297,857        12,232         235,933          10,576             246,509            79.2% 253,646         (17,713)                 -7.0%

 Children's Programs 77,825          81,598          14,359         82,244             4,308               86,552              100.8% 79,666           2,578                    3.2%

 Preschool Programs 245,478        245,478        23,758         198,900          -                        198,900            81.0% 216,080         (17,180)                 -8.0%

 Youth Programs 142,630        142,780        6,598            113,680          2,500               116,180            79.6% 114,007         (327)                      -0.3%

 Adult Programs 46,469          46,469          4,004            38,289             2,453               40,742              82.4% 41,397           (3,109)                   -7.5%

 Pioneer Programs 82,230          82,230          1,502            51,591             3,115               54,706              62.7% 80,133           (28,541)                 -35.6%

 Special Events and Trips 87,340          87,340          1,220            66,004             3,000               69,004              75.6% 64,035           1,970                    3.1%

 Marketing 337,410        337,410        27,326         282,588          10,964             293,552            83.8% 286,219         (3,631)                   -1.3%

 Capital Outlay 375,000        375,000        11,022         309,721          -                        309,721            82.6% 137,761         171,960                124.8%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,056,847$  4,056,847$  317,126$     3,382,892$     $          84,353 3,467,245$      83.4% 3,393,818$   (10,926)$              -0.3%

 TRANSFERS OUT 81,011$        81,011$        -$              81,011$          -$                 81,011$            100.0% -$                81,011$                N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

AND TRANSFERS OUT
4,137,858$  4,137,858$  317,126$     3,463,903$    84,353$          3,548,256$      83.7% 3,393,818$   70,085$                2.1%

REVENUES OVER 

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
(443,694)$    (443,694)$    (155,325)$   184,003$        (84,353)$         99,651$            -41.5% 274,664$       (90,661)$              -33.0%

Note> Fiscal year 2018/2019 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When comparing
current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/-10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Recreation Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through April 30, 2019 and 2018

100.00% completed (12 out of 12 months)

 Fiscal Year 2018/2019- Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance 

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% 

change

Prepared by: Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



 Original

Annual

Budget 

 Amended

Annual

Budget 

 April

2019

Actual 

 Year-To-Date

Actual  Encumbered 

 Year-To-

Date

Actual +

Encumbered 

 Y-T-D Actual, 

as a % of 

Amended 

Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year

2017/2018

Year-To-Date 

Actual

2018/2019 Y-T-D 

Actual Higher/

(Lower) than 

2017/2018 Y-T-D

Percent 

Change

REVENUES

 Administration  $         6,500  $         6,500  $             1,024  $         18,653  $                  -    $        18,653 287.0%  $          7,646  $               11,007 144.0%

 Building- Racquet Club              1,000              1,000                    145                   350                      -                    350 35.0%                  649                       (299) -46.0%

 Programs- Racquet Club      1,543,700      1,543,700               65,715        1,910,683                      -         1,910,683 123.8%       1,649,808                 260,875 15.8%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,551,200$  1,551,200$  66,885$           1,929,687$     $                  -   1,929,687$   124.4% 1,658,103$   271,584$             16.4%

EXPENSES

 Administration 688,492$     616,982$     37,344$           527,552$        $           3,389 530,941$      85.5% 541,541$       $             (13,989) -2.6%

 Building- Racquet Club 357,077        364,077        17,886             270,264          21,138            291,402        74.2% 299,191         (28,927)                -9.7%

 Programs- Racquet Club 624,873        735,502        44,913             574,060          -                      574,060        78.1% 627,670         (53,610)                -8.5%

 Capital Outlay 225,000        178,881        -                        142,652          -                      142,652        79.7% -                      142,652               N/A

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,895,442$  1,895,442$  100,143$         1,514,528$    24,527$         1,539,054$   79.9% 1,468,402$   46,125$               3.1%

REVENUES OVER 

(UNDER) EXPENSES
(344,242)$    (344,242)$    (33,258)$         415,159$       (24,527)$        390,632$      -120.6% 189,701$      225,458$             118.8%

Note> Fiscal year 2018/2019 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When comparing
current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/-10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Tennis Center (Recreational Facilities Fund) Revenue and Expense Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through April 30, 2019 and 2018

100.00% completed (12 out of 12 months)

 Fiscal Year 2018/2019- Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance 

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% 

change

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



NOTES

2016/2017:  In December 2016 we recorded $1,163,610 in bond proceeds in the Capital Projects Fund.  This is the primary reason for the large increase in YTD revenues

 during FY 2016/2017.  

2017/2018:  In February 2018 we recorded $500,000 in debt certificate proceeds in the Capital Projects Fund and such proceeds are being used to fund the construction of

 the universal playground.  This is one reason for the large increase in YTD revenues.

2018/2019:  Historically, we have received the largest portions of our property taxes in June and September.  In FY 2018/2019 we received approximately $418,000 in property

 taxes in May and another $522,000 in August; a month earlier than usual.  In addition, this fiscal year is benefitting from approximately $229,000 in new revenues

 related to our management of the Village's aquatic center.  Tennis group lesson revenue is also significantly higher than prior year.  In January 2019 the District 

 received approximately $18.1 million in bond proceeds to be used for the purchase of 34 acres of land.

$
7

3
6

,6
0

6
 

$
2

,7
2

2
,5

3
9

 

$
3

,1
8

8
,7

1
8

 

$
3

,7
7

3
,2

3
5

 

$
5

,4
0

6
,2

5
5

 

$
6

,0
7

1
,0

5
0

 

$
6

,5
4

2
,2

9
6

 

$
7

,0
6

2
,1

6
4

 

$
7

,5
2

8
,3

4
3

 

$
7

,8
6

1
,7

3
1

 

$
8

,1
7

0
,1

8
5

 

$
8

,5
7

9
,0

9
5

 

$
7

8
6

,6
5

8
 

$
2

,8
5

1
,1

1
8

 

$
3

,3
3

5
,1

7
8

 

$
3

,8
9

6
,4

7
3

 

$
5

,5
8

9
,8

8
7

 

$
6

,2
7

6
,9

5
4

 

$
6

,7
1

3
,3

5
0

 

$
8

,3
5

1
,3

6
3

 

$
8

,8
5

0
,1

0
2

 

$
9

,2
3

7
,4

9
0

 

$
9

,5
7

1
,9

8
6

 

$
1

0
,1

2
2

,6
2

7
 

$
8

1
6

,7
8

5
 

$
2

,8
9

1
,5

9
2

 

$
3

,3
3

0
,7

8
4

 

$
3

,9
0

5
,0

5
0

 

$
5

,5
8

6
,2

4
4

 

$
6

,3
2

4
,1

8
5

 

$
6

,7
5

1
,6

2
1

 

$
7

,2
6

2
,3

5
3

 

$
7

,8
1

3
,2

8
3

 

$
8

,6
9

6
,8

9
9

 

$
9

,0
6

9
,6

7
7

 

$
9

,5
3

2
,5

1
3

 

$
1

,2
6

8
,9

1
0

 

$
3

,1
5

2
,3

7
2

 

$
3

,6
9

8
,4

4
7

 

$
4

,8
7

9
,1

7
6

 

$
6

,1
2

6
,2

5
3

 

$
6

,8
1

8
,2

7
2

 

$
7

,3
0

4
,4

2
8

 

$
7

,8
1

4
,1

9
1

 

$26,666,173 $27,093,507 $27,454,345 
$28,140,689 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Revenues (excluding transfers in)

YTD 2015/2016 Revenues YTD 2016/2017 Revenues YTD 2017/2018 Revenues YTD 2018/2019 Revenues

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



NOTES

2017/2018:  During June 2017 and 2018 the Park District recognized three payroll disbursements when compared to two disbursements in June of 2015 & 2016.  This is one

 of the reasons for the increased Y-T-D expenditures in June 2017 and 2018 over the same period in 2016 and 2015.  The increased expenditures as of April 30, 2018

 are primarily due to increased capital expenditures in our Capital Projects Fund (family locker room) and Tennis Center (HVAC upgrade, reflective ceiling).

2018/2019:  The large increase in expenditures during August 2018 is due to the additional capital costs incurred for our Central Park improvement project.  During that month

 we recognized $502,035 in capital costs which brings the YTD total to $936,997.  In the prior year we had only recognized $43,525 in capital costs as of the end

 of August 2017.  Additionally, this fiscal year includes new expenditures related to our management of the Village's aquatic center.  In February 2019 the District

 recorded $15.8 million in capital expenditures for the purchase of 34 acres of land.

$
3

0
0

,4
7

2
 

$
8

3
1

,6
4

7
 

$
1

,8
4

4
,6

0
3

 

$
2

,4
0

2
,9

3
7

 

$
3

,0
8

0
,0

0
7

 

$
4

,2
6

1
,4

7
5

 

$
4

,8
7

3
,8

6
9

 

$
5

,7
7

3
,4

8
9

 

$
6

,4
8

4
,1

8
5

 

$
7

,0
1

5
,2

8
1

 

$
7

,5
5

1
,4

5
7

 

$
8

,4
0

9
,4

3
1

 

$
3

0
5

,5
8

1
 

$
8

7
1

,0
8

5
 

$
1

,9
0

1
,6

3
5

 

$
2

,5
3

5
,4

0
2

 

$
3

,1
5

7
,7

8
9

 

$
4

,2
6

5
,0

8
1

 

$
4

,8
7

1
,2

3
3

 

$
5

,5
6

0
,6

2
6

 

$
6

,3
0

7
,4

1
3

 

$
6

,8
6

8
,1

7
2

 

$
7

,4
2

6
,8

1
4

 

$
8

,6
5

8
,7

8
9

 

$
2

9
3

,8
7

6
 

$
1

,1
2

7
,5

3
0

 

$
1

,8
6

8
,7

6
6

 

$
2

,7
5

6
,6

1
0

 

$
3

,5
2

4
,5

6
0

 

$
4

,8
1

9
,9

0
2

 

$
5

,7
8

2
,4

3
5

 

$
6

,7
2

5
,4

5
5

 

$
7

,4
4

2
,2

9
6

 

$
8

,1
5

7
,8

1
3

 

$
8

,8
3

7
,3

8
8

 

$
1

0
,2

8
6

,5
2

9
 

$
3

0
0

,9
2

2
 

$
1

,1
6

2
,4

5
1

 

$
2

,2
0

0
,9

0
0

 

$
3

,4
5

8
,3

2
9

 

$
4

,1
7

8
,3

0
5

 

$
5

,3
2

0
,8

9
1

 

$
6

,2
1

8
,8

8
0

 

$
6

,8
7

0
,7

1
6

 

$
8

,0
2

0
,4

5
3

 

$24,435,238 
$25,177,712 

$25,876,736 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Expenditures/Expenses (excluding transfers out)

YTD 2015/2016 Expenditures YTD 2016/2017 Expenditures YTD 2017/2018 Expenditures YTD 2018/2019 Expenditures

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

$
4

3
6

,1
3

4
 

$
1

,8
9

0
,8

9
2

 

$
1

,3
4

4
,1

1
5

 

$
1

,3
7

0
,2

9
7

 

$
2

,3
2

6
,2

4
8

 

$
1

,8
0

9
,5

7
6

 

$
1

,6
6

8
,4

2
8

 

$
1

,2
8

8
,6

7
5

 

$
1

,0
4

4
,1

5
8

 

$
8

4
6

,4
4

9
 

$
6

1
8

,7
2

8
 

$
1

6
9

,6
6

4
 

$
4

8
1

,0
7

7
 

$
1

,9
8

0
,0

3
3

 

$
1

,4
3

3
,5

4
2

 

$
1

,3
6

1
,0

7
1

 

$
2

,4
3

2
,0

9
8

 

$
2

,0
1

1
,8

7
3

 

$
1

,8
4

2
,1

1
7

 

$
2

,7
9

0
,7

3
7

 

$
2

,5
4

2
,6

8
9

 

$
2

,3
6

9
,3

1
8

 

$
2

,1
4

5
,1

7
3

 

$
1

,4
6

3
,8

3
8

 

$
5

2
2

,9
0

9
 

$
1

,7
6

4
,0

6
3

 

$
1

,4
6

2
,0

1
8

 

$
1

,1
4

8
,4

3
9

 

$
2

,0
6

1
,6

8
4

 

$
1

,5
0

4
,2

8
3

 

$
9

6
9

,1
8

6
 

$
5

3
6

,8
9

9
 

$
3

7
0

,9
8

7
 

$
5

3
9

,0
8

6
 

$
2

3
2

,2
8

9
 

$(754,016)

$
9

6
7

,9
8

9
 

$
1

,9
8

9
,9

2
0

 

$
1

,4
9

7
,5

4
7

 

$
1

,4
2

0
,8

4
7

 

$
1

,9
4

7
,9

4
8

 

$
1

,4
9

7
,3

8
1

 

$
1

,0
8

5
,5

4
7

 

$
9

4
3

,4
7

5
 

$18,645,720 

$
2

,6
5

8
,2

6
9

 

$
2

,2
7

6
,6

3
2

 

$
2

,2
6

3
,9

5
2

 

 $(5,000,000)

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Net Surplus/(Deficit)

YTD 2015/2016 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2016/2017 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2017/2018 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2018/2019 Net Surplus/(Deficit)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 05/07/2019



  
CURRENT 

MONTH 
ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

FUND NAME    
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND

REVENUE 184,367$        2,584,787$        2,559,606$          
EXPENSES 172,429$        2,442,605$        2,840,316$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 11,938$          142,182$           (280,710)$            

   
RECREATION FUND    

REVENUE 161,802$        3,647,906$        3,694,164$          
EXPENSES 317,126$        3,463,904$        4,137,858$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (155,325)$       184,003$           (443,694)$            

   
IMRF FUND     

REVENUE 5,933$            189,252$           189,312$             
EXPENSES 12,717$          186,077$           205,000$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (6,785)$           3,175$               (15,688)$              

   
   

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND    
REVENUE 1,595$            235,483$           236,563$             
EXPENSES 2,723$            148,953$           161,836$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (1,128)$           86,530$             74,727$               

   
AUDIT FUND    

REVENUE 19$                 231$                  201$                    
EXPENSES -$                13,013$             13,263$               
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 19$                 (12,782)$            (13,062)$              

   
   

DEBT SERVICE FUND    
REVENUE 32$                 419,475$           412,409$             
EXPENSES -$                415,616$           411,999$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 32$                 3,859$               410$                    

   

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

APRIL, 2019

1 Prepared By:  Marco Salinas



  
CURRENT 

MONTH 
ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

FUND NAME    

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

APRIL, 2019

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND    
(TENNIS CENTER)   

REVENUE 66,885$          1,929,687$        1,551,200$          
EXPENSES 100,143$        1,514,527$        1,895,442$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (33,258)$         415,159$           (344,242)$            

SPORTS CORE FUND   
REVENUE -$                228,788$           265,000$             
EXPENSES 1,375$            224,964$           265,000$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (1,375)$           3,824$               -$                     

   
  

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND   
REVENUE 9$                   149,146$           144,155$             
EXPENSES 3,533$            117,130$           129,200$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (3,524)$           32,017$             14,955$               

   
   

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND    
REVENUE 261,743$        18,744,995$      16,886,500$        
EXPENSES 37,741$          17,360,094$      17,489,806$        
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 224,001$        1,384,901$        (603,306)$            

   
   

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND    
REVENUE 3,961$            268,523$           271,133$             
EXPENSES 17,961$          247,439$           253,000$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (13,999)$         21,084$             18,133$               

   
   

SUMMARY     
   REVENUE  686,344$        28,398,274$      26,210,243$        
   EXPENSES 665,748$        26,134,323$      27,802,720$        

 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 20,597$          2,263,951$        (1,592,477)$         

2 Prepared By:  Marco Salinas



OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED AGENCY TREASURER'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

 
REVENUES

Property Taxes -$                                                
Back Taxes -                                                   
Replacement Taxes 39,152                                            
Recreation Program Fees 113,335                                          
Rec/Fitness Center Fees 56,796                                            
Rec/Aquatic Center Fees 44,286                                            
Sports Core - Bath & Tennis -                                                   
FRC/Building Rental Fees 40,622                                            
Theme Party Rental Fees -                                                   
Recreation Center Fees 94,841                                            
CPW Building Rentals 1,611                                              
Field Rentals 23,530                                            
Interest 4,793                                              
Grant Proceeds 260,181                                          
Debt Certificate Proceeds -                                                   
Transfers -                                                   
Donations -                                                   
Sponsorship 1,550                                              
Miscellaneous 27,266                                            

TOTAL- REVENUES 707,962$                                        

EXPENDITURES
Warrant No. 622 & Manual Adjustments 265,781$                                        
April Payroll 399,967                                          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 665,748$                                        

APRIL 2019

Prepared by:  Marco A. Salinas Last Update: 05/08/2019



ASSETS

Consolidated 

Totals

Current Assets

Cash and Investments 7,833,512$       

Receivables - Net of Allowances -                     

  Property Taxes 3,351,979         

  Accounts 465,941            

Due from Other Funds (105)                   

Prepaids  7,885                 

Inventories 15,238              

     Total Current Assets  11,674,450$     

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

  Nondepreciable 40,475              

  Construction in Process -                     

  Depreciable 4,608,995         

  Accumulated Depreciation (3,051,661)        

    Total Noncurrent Assets 1,597,809         

     Total Assets  13,272,259       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items-IMRF 96,253              

Total Assets and Deferred outflows of Resources 13,368,512       

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 53,087              

Accrued Payroll 11,762              

Other Payables 1,126,384         

Due To Other Funds -                     

Compensated Absences Payable 2,827                 

    Total Liabilities 1,194,059         

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences Payable 11,310              

Net Pension Liability - IMRF 21,014              

      Total Noncurrent Liabilities 32,324              

     Total Liabilities 1,226,383         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items - IMRF 182,013            

Property Taxes 3,351,979         

    Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,760,375         

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,597,808         

Nonspendable -                     

Restricted 389,223            

Committed 4,516,628         

Unassigned 2,104,479         

     Total Fund Balances 8,608,138         

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances 13,368,512       

Oak Brook Park District

Consolidated Agency Balance Sheet

as of April 30, 2019

FUND BALANCES

Prepared By: N Strathdee

5/14/2019



AMOUNT RATE MATURITY

EVERGREEN BANK 4,304,803.70$      0.75% VARIES /MONEY MARKET

HINSDALE BANK 256,082.66$         2.44% VARIES /MONEY MARKET

 

ILLINOIS FUNDS 

TENNIS CENTER 677,287.43$         2.45% VARIES/INVESTMENT POOL

EVERGREEN BANK CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT 144,017.42$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 5,382,191.21$      

    OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

INVESTMENTS AS OF APRIL, 2019

Prepared By: Marco Salinas

5/9/2019



Oak Brook Park District

Capital Expenditures

As of April 30, 2019

DESCRIPTION VENDOR DB/CR
CAPITAL ASSET 
REPLACEMENT

FACILITY/PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS

Shade Structure for CP Playground Parkreation, Inc 23,331.00$         -$                   23,331.00$           
Central Park Improvement - Landscaping Allied Landscaping Corp 163,760.00         163,760.00           
Central Park Improvement - Excavation, Site 
Utilities & Paving Clauss Brothers 284,192.97          284,192.97           
Central Park Improvement - Grading of Sled 
Hill Lee Werner Excavating 9,885.00            9,885.00               
Central Park Improvement - Playground 
Equipment Pkg 6 The Kenneth Company 253,099.00          253,099.00           
Gabian Wier Bid Documents Manhard Consulting 3,094.30            3,094.30               
Legal Fees Robbins Schwartrz 23,674.00            23,674.00             
Trees for Central Park Improvement Hinsdale Nurseries 7,724.00            7,724.00               
Central Park Improvements Mgmt Services Wight and Company 88,440.00           88,440.00             
Central Park Improvements Wight and Company 19,915.00           19,915.00             
Central Park Improvements - Fencing Peerless Enterprise 121,526.00         121,526.00           
Central Park Improvements - Electrical Outlet 
Install Barton Electric Inc. 4,790.00            4,790.00               
Central Park Improvements Dawson's Tree Service 530.00               530.00                  
Court Resurfacing Construction By Camco 9,425.00            9,425.00               
Parking Lot Cameras Construction By Camco 2,175.00            2,175.00               
Paver Installation ->Playground Parking LPS Paving Company 83,300.00           83,300.00             
Ballfield Lighting Musco Lighting 96,639.00           96,639.00             
Ballfield Light Measurement Hugh Lighting 968.75               968.75                  
Locker Room Mirrors House of Glass 1,004.00            1,004.00               
Countertop Men's Locker Room Premiere Woodworking Concepts 2,150.00            2,150.00               
Exhaust Return Grates Locker Room Air Products Equipment 200.00               200.00                  
Directional Borings - Central Park Richmond Electric Co. Inc 22,400.00           22,400.00             
Parking Lot Security Camera Lucky Locators Inc 645.00               645.00                  
Gabian Wier Project Nettle Creek Nursery, Inc. 128,227.88         128,227.88           
Bleachers & Benches Kay Park Rec Corp 5,815.00            5,815.00               
Athletic Court Resurfacing Perma-Seal 42,276.00           42,276.00             
Axis P1447-LE Camera SHI International 5,576.00            5,576.00               
Masonry Improvements Cyberdyne Masonry 9,477.50            9,477.50               
Server Upgrade Various 11,070.95           11,070.95             
Family Locker Room Airport Electric 28,847.81           28,847.81             
Subsurface Soil/Water Test-Pre Acquisition Enviromental Group Surfaces 7,400.00            7,400.00               
Purchase Fields CP North McDonalds Corporation 15,800,000.00    15,800,000.00      
Soil testing and topographical survey Pulte Home Company 17,390.00           17,390.00             
Concept Plan for CP North Wight and Company 4,106.68            4,106.68               
Mowing Equipment for CP North Russo Equipment 15,515.77           15,515.77             
Soccer goals- CP North Keeper Goals 15,884.00           15,884.00             
Trash/Recycle Waste Containers Smart Industries 4,600.00            4,600.00               
Elimination of concrete curb M & J Asphalt 96,147.68           96,147.68             
Retainage Adjustment Alpine Demo & Kingston Tile (1,281.00)           (1,281.00)             
Special Recreation Allocation for Universal 
Playground (40,000.00)         (40,000.00)            
Capital expense allocation to 02-81 per 
budget. (250,803.82)       (250,803.82)          
Capital expense allocation to 07-80 per 
budget. (19,000.00)         (19,000.00)            

Subtotal-Capital Improvement Fund 17,104,118.47$  -$                   17,104,118.47$    

Capital expense allocation to 02-81 per 
budget.  250,803.82          250,803.82           
Unity garden Greenberg & Farrow 15,156.37           15,156.37             
Trash & Recycling receptacles Smart Industry Products 11,000.00           
Cardio Fitness Equipment  Payment 3 of 3 Lease Servicing Center Inc 32,760.71            32,760.71             

Subtotal-Recreation Fund 309,720.90$       -                     298,720.90$         
    

 TOTAL BALANCE 17,413,839.37$  -$                   17,402,839.37$    

Prepared By: Marco Salinas





















Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Petty Cash Corporate

Petty Cash for May 2019

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
L. Kosey

3/12/19 Coffee for Office 01-01-730-002 $28.96
Total $28.96

Grand Total $28.96



Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Petty Cash Recreation

Petty Cash for May 2019

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
D. Thommes

4/15/19 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $18.00
4/15/19 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $17.00
4/29/19 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $12.41
4/29/19 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $7.10
4/29/19 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $21.00

Total $75.51

L. Littwin 4/4/19 Valet for Meeting 02-80-740-020 $2.00
Total $2.00

Grand Total $77.51





Memo 
To: Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  

From: Laure Kosey, Executive Director 

Date: May 10, 2019 

Re: April/May 2019: Admin., Corporate Relations, IT & Marketing 

April Board Meeting Follow Up: 

The Central Park North Fields Project 
Wight & Company will present the data regarding our community intake meetings and survey at the special 
meeting held at 5:30 pm on May 20,2019 right before our regularly scheduled board meeting.

May Board Meeting Discussion Points: 

Zoning of Central Park North Fields 
Staff and Counsel are recommending a zoning change of the new property from ORA1 (Office, Research, & 
Assembly) to CR (Conservation/Recreation). 

National Conference 
National Conference is in Baltimore from Monday, September 23 to Thursday, September 26, 2019.  Please advise 
of any commissioners that will be attending.

Conservation Easement 
The amendment to the conservation easement had been tabled to further clarify the parameters of any nature
center that may be constructed in the future.  The future nature center shall not exceed 4,000 square feet, which is
the size of the footprint of the original farm house.  It is also limited to one level in height.

April Corporate & Community Relations Report 

FY 2017 FY 2018 

Sponsorships $112,425.00 (Includes Synthetic Soccer Field Partnership) $49,015.00 

Ad Space $34,075.01 $33,000.00 

Vendors $7,993.95 $13,800.00 

In-Kind Donations $23,628.55 $49,005.85 

Oak Brook Park District Foundation $31,528.98 $57,592.28 

April Revenues 

Sponsorships: $5500 Advertising: $9850 Vendors: $2600  In-Kind Donations: $35 

Oak Brook Park District Foundation: $36.90 



IT Initiatives 
A new server was installed for file storage, active directory and various other 

network programs.  This new server has all solid-state drives and the capability 

of virtualizing other servers to run on it.  

We are looking into updating some back-end parts of the ShoreTel phone 

system.  This includes migrating the server to a newer Mitel software platform. 

April Marketing & IT Report 

obparks.org April Audience Report 

Summer Aquatic Membership Campaign Update:  
212 summer aquatic membership discounts were emailed to 

patrons that signed up for our eNewsletter via the pop-up ad at 

obparks.org. 35 coupons were redeemed.  

Summer Aquatic Membership Revenue through April 30 

2019: $17,560 (307 members)   2018: $12,065 (224 members) 

April Facebook Analytics 
Facebook Page Total Likes Total Posts Reach 

OBPARKS  2431 (59 new) 22 47,331 

Pink 5K 1295 13 2016 

Highest Performing Facebook Post April 

April Top Pages 

1. Home 

2. Facilities/FRC 

3. Programs/aquatics 

4. Facilities/FAC

5. Special-Events/Pink5K

6. Facilities/CPW

7. Parties-and-rentals 

8. Rentals/CPW 

9. Programs/swim-lessons 

10. Programs/tennis-programs 

Top Referral Sites/User: 

Facebook, Tennis Source, 

mykidlist.com, Fleetfeet 

Top Referral Sites/Revenue 

Tennissource, calameo, 

activekids.com 

Obparks.org acquisition value 

Referral Values Apr. 19 Apr. 18 Mar. 19  

Direct: $82,554 $64,966 $118,996  

External Refs: $2,559 $1,734 $15,444 

Organic Search: $4,555 $4,562 $3,937 

Social Media: $171 $450 $2,503 

Email/Other: $502 $136 $777 

Ecommerce Total:  
April 2019: $90,341 v. April 2018: $71,848 

YTD 2019: $377,934 v. YTD 2018: $280,856 

Email Marketing 

Email Date Open Clicks 

April eNews 4/30 29% 11% 

Summer Campaign 4/1-30 78.7% 55.8% 

Highest Performing Insta Post 

665 followers (up 25) 

April Twitter Analytics 

We have revised our Pinterest account 

and are developing a plan to better 

utilize this top search engine in 2019.  



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To: Board of Commissioners and Executive Director, Laure Kosey  
From: Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer  
Date: May 14, 2019 
Re: April 2019 Financials  

 
Please note that due to the timing of these financial statements, we have yet to record a number of year-
end adjustments including the year-end payroll accruals (various funds), compensated absence 
expenses (Tennis fund) as well as depreciation expense (Tennis fund).  In addition, we continue to 
receive and process invoices for FY 2018/2019 that, once processed, will further increase expenditures 
across many funds. 

General Fund 
 

We have now completed all twelve months of fiscal year 2018/2019.  Year-to-date (YTD) revenues, expenditures, 
and transfers out in this fund equal $2,584,787, $2,292,605 and $150,000, respectively.  This is resulting in a YTD 
net surplus of $142,182; which is $216,271 greater than prior year’s deficit of $74,090.  Following is additional 
commentary: 

 
• Total revenues have exceeded budget primarily due to better than expected property tax receipts, field 

rental revenue, as well as collection of the monthly electrical rebate (new revenue source).  This was 
partially offset by lower than expected building rental revenue for our Family Recreation Center as well as 
our Central Park West facility;   

• Expenditures across all departments are either on target or favorable against the annual budget.  Two of our 
satellite parks, Saddlebrook and Forest Glen, experienced increased costs when compared to the prior year 
due to increased tree removal and tree trimming services, as well as the purchase of lawn aerating 
equipment; 

• The $150,000 transfer to the Capital Projects fund was significantly lower than prior year’s amount of 
$410,000.  This is a major reason why there is a surplus in the current year whereas last year we ended with 
a deficit.  Excluding this transfer out activity in both years, the current year surplus totals $292,182, which is 
comparable to last year’s surplus of $335,910. 

 
Recreation Fund 

 
YTD revenues, expenditures, and transfers out in this fund equal $3,647,906, $3,382,892 and $81,011, respectively.  
This is resulting in a YTD net surplus of $184,003; which is $90,661 lower than prior year’s net surplus of $274,664.  
Following is additional commentary over this fund’s activities: 
 

• Total revenues are slightly below the amount budgeted as well as compared to the prior year.  In our Aquatic 
Recreation Programs department, children’s private lesson revenue and children’s program revenue missed 
budgeted revenue by approximately $55,000.  In our Preschool Programs department, full-day preschool is 
unfavorable against budget by $38,000 and has decreased approximately $46,000 (28%) over the prior 
year.  In our Pioneer Programs department, trip revenues missed targeted revenues by $18,177 (25%). 

• On the positive side, revenues have exceeded budget in our Children’s Programs, Special Events, and 
Marketing departments.   

• Expenditures across all departments are currently either on target or favorable against budget.   



⚫ Page 2 

• Capital expenditures have increased significantly over prior year.  The $309,721 in YTD expenditures is 
comprised of $250,804 for our Central Park improvement project, a $32,761 lease payment for various 
fitness equipment, $15,156 for the unity garden project and $11,000 for the purchase of trash and recycling 
containers.  The prior year’s expenditures of $137,761 is comprised of the $32,761 fitness equipment lease 
payment, as well as $105,000 in costs incurred for our family locker room project. 
 

Recreational Facilities Fund (Tennis Center) 
 

YTD revenues and expenses in this fund are currently at $1,929,687 and $1,514,528, respectively.  This is resulting 
in a YTD net surplus of $415,159; which is an increase of $225,458 over prior year’s net surplus of 189,701.  This 
year’s surplus is being primarily driven by the following activity: 

 
• Administration revenues have increased over prior year due to the receipt of the monthly electrical rebate 

from Direct Energy, as described on page 1 of this memo.  The Tennis Fund is allocated with 25% of the 
monthly revenue due to their participation/commitment in reducing energy consumption;      

• Increased non-resident membership revenue- $203,121 in the current year versus $186,962 in the prior year; 
• Increased seasonal and indoor daily court time revenue- $169,266 and $211,776, respectively, in the current 

year versus $157,851 and $193,278, respectively, in the prior year; 
• Increased private lesson revenue- $272,529 in the current year versus $231,266 in the prior year; 
• Increased group lesson revenues- $902,504 in the current year versus $730,292 in the prior year;   
• Expenditures across all departments are currently either on target or favorable against budget.   
• Decreased capital expenditures.  This year the tennis center has spent $142,652 on capital improvements 

whereas in the prior year, the amount spent was three times as much at $501,682.   
  
FINANCE OPERATIONS: 

• Preliminary audit fieldwork was completed in early May and our auditors are scheduled to return in July 2019 
to conduct the final fieldwork for fiscal year 2018/2019. 

• Finance is working on various year-end adjustments and accruals and is in the process of reconciling all 
balance sheet accounts through April 30, 2019. 

• Finance completed the annual Operating Expenditures form as requested by PDRMA.  The completed form 
will be used to calculate our 2020 insurance premiums. 
  

HUMAN RESOURCES: 
• Linda drafted a job posting template for part and full-time positions that not only includes a brief profile of the 

District, but also any employment benefits.  This task was undertaken to enhance our hiring efforts for the 
upcoming summer season.  



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  
From:  Dave Thommes, Deputy Director   
Date:  May 13, 2019 
Re:  Recreation & Facilities Report   

 
Recreation 

• Bunny Basket deliveries took place on April 16th and 17th. 21 participants received baskets and a visit from the 
bunny!  

• Preschool hosted an open house on April 3rd during preschool hours. 7 families enjoyed a tour and learned more 
about the program.  

• Twetny-seven Pioneers enjoyed Art in Bloom at the Milwaukee Art Museum which included lunch at the historic 
Pfister Hotel.  

• Mah Jongg participants (up to 36 every week!) are enjoying their time together on Fridays. Many new patrons 
are learning the game.  

• Pioneer events this month also included: a movie matinee of “Crazy Rich Asians,” bocce and bowling at 
Pinstripes on Mondays, along with brain games and bingo. 

Aquatics 
• Swim team numbers continue to grow, which is very promising. 
• The Underwater Egg Hunt went extremely well with 339 total participants.  After reviewing the event survey, 

staff plans to improve the PA system and to find alternatives to candy for some prizes. 
• The month of May will be full of hiring and training sessions for lifeguard staff to prepare for the upcoming 

outdoor summer season. We have many returning guards from last year and we have built up a strong group of 
new hires over the past few weeks. 

Fitness 
• The Pink 5K was held on May 11.    1,069 participants registered with 826 runners finishing the race.   
• A new session of Get Tough started and has 13 participants 
• To better promote events and programs internally, new large poster frames have gone up in the fitness center. 

A wall magazine rack was also added. 
Tennis 

• Members-Management meetings took place at the Tennis Center in April.  The feedback received about the 
direction of the Tennis Center and its upcoming project was very positive and constructive. 

• New outdoor cameras were installed at the Tennis Center. 
• Junior development parent meetings were held on Friday, April 26th. 

Athletics 
• April field rental revenue in 2019 was $5,900 more than in 2018. The majority of that came from a new renter 

who needed a lot of time on the natural turf soccer fields.  
• Fiscal year end revenue is nearly identical to last year’s, with $124,230 in FY 18 – 19 compared to $124,785 in FY 

17 – 18, despite having the baseball fields unavailable for rentals due to the reconfiguration project. 
• The Spring Men’s Basketball League has begun with 13 teams registered. 
• New custom soccer field number signs have been ordered and will be put up at the fields. 



 Page 2 

• Open Pickleball numbers continue to increase, including a new high of 37 participants on April 30th. Staff are 
currently working on creating a program for the fall season to capitalize on this audience in addition to open 
play. 

Facilities 
• Maintenance staff rebuilt exhaust fans in the slide tower at the aquatic center and in the men’s locker room at 

the Tennis Center. 
• Splash Island has been de-winterized and assembled for opening, which is planned for May 20th.  
• In-house preventive maintenance was performed on rooftop HVAC systems and air handlers at the Family 

Recreation Center and Central Park West. 
Retention Results 
 

19-Apr 
  Retained Total Rate 

Aquatic 179 196 91.30% 

Aqua/Ten 1 1 100.00% 

Fitness 326 359 90.80% 

Fit/Aqua 157 169 92.90% 

Fit/Ten 13 14 96.00% 

Premiere 34 38 89.50% 

        

Yearly Total 710 777 91.40% 

EFT Aqua 704 723 97.40% 

EFT Aqua/Ten 47 48 97.90% 

EFT Fitness 1124 1151 97.70% 

EFT Fit/Aqua 596 618 96.40% 

EFT Fit/Ten 84 90 93.30% 

EFT Premiere 149 149 100.00% 

        

Yearly & EFT 3414 3556 96.00% 

 
• We gained 32 new members in March; net 13. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Swim Lesson and Swim Team Statistics

Summer Fall Wint/Spr Total
2015/2016 2199 1562 2433 6194
2016/17 1978 1434 2084 5496
2017/18 1694 1173 1899 4766
2018/19 1483 1085 1758 4326

Summer Fall/Winter Spring Spring Training Total
2015/2016 34 56 53 84 227
2016/17 51 68 35 52 206
2017/18 32 65 46 73 216
2018/19 71 80 78 99 328

Swim Lesson Statistics

Swim Team Statistics

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

2015/2016 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Swim Lesson Statistics

Summer Fall Wint/Spr Total



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Aquatic Party Statistics

Total # Parties Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Splash Birthday 15 9 24 48

Super Splash Birthday 7 3 11 21
Group  (by day) 7 8 2 17

Private (indoors only) 6 4 4 14
Private (indoor/outdoor combo) 0 0 0 0

Splash Island Birthday 0 0 0 0
Camp Rentals 0 0 2 2

Lane Rental (lap only) 0 0 0 0
Scout 2 1 1 4

Total # Parties 37 25 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106

2018 47 44 48 57 47 60 49 40 36 26 23 25 502
2017 46 52 60 54 43 61 75 37 2* 41 29 52 550

2019 Aquatic Party Statistics



Oak Brook Park District
Athletic Fields Rental Report

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 Actual

Hours 177 103 109 180 188 183 109 8 7.5 3 80.5 168 1,316 1,233
Revenue $13,262 $5,222 $2,103 $10,385 $11,120 $12,907 $8,985 $739 $750 $205 $7,238 $14,722 $87,638 $80,718

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 Actual

Hours 159 140 133 202 211 200 1 0 0 0 0 73 1,119 1,106
Revenue $4,203 $2,248 $833 $1,138 $6,713 $2,088 $25 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,742 $18,987 $9,850

May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 Actual

Hours 88 148 151 209 183 81 2 0 0 0 0 79.25 941 987
Revenue $2,778 $4,157 $1,284 $2,425 $4,235 $2,079 $150 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,053 $18,160 $16,645

Grand Total Hours: 3375 3326
Grand Total Revenue: $124,785 $107,213

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 18/19 YTD 17/18 YTD

Hours 172 126 79 168 203 210 81 28 0 0 87 155 1,307 1,316
Revenue $15,258 $9,005 $3,813 $12,280 $12,714 $15,670 $5,880 $3,080 $0 $0 $7,465 $16,085 $101,248 $87,638

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 18/19 YTD 17/18 YTD

Hours 91 154 131 145 195 80 0 0 0 0 0 177 971 1,119
Revenue $3,156 $2,081 $725 $1,625 $2,688 $1,413 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,575 $17,263 $18,987

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 18/19 YTD 17/18 YTD

Hours 116 96 37 24 116 89 12 0 0 0 0 83 572 941
Revenue $1,740 $595 $100 $75 $200 $800 $475 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,734 $5,719 $18,160

Grand Total Hours: 2849 3375
Grand Total Revenue: $124,230 $124,785

Athletic Field Usage 2017/2018 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2017/2018 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2017/2018 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2018/2019 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2018/2019 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2018/2019 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields



Oak Brook Park District
Facility Statistics and Data

JAN Feb March April May June July AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC Total
2019
Gym 

Rentals 136 134 109 93

 Gym 
Revenue 19,800.00$    18,003.00$    13,045.00$    10,695.00$    

Room 
Rentals 43 57 60 52

 Room
 Revenue 1,170.00$      2,618.50$      1,055.00$      1,945.00$      

CPW 
Rentals 11 9 14 10

CPW 
Revenue $4,990.00 $3,597.50 $4,990.00 $2,760.00

2018
Gym 

Rentals 152 131 137 101 78 73 70 96 98 119 139 118 1,312

 Gym 
Revenue 19,245.00$    18,237.00$    14,510.00$    11,025.00$    6,490.00$      7,412.50$      7,340.00$      20,500.00$    8,950.00$      15,396.00$    17,165.00$    16,075.00$    162,345.50$    

Room 
Rentals 57 48 66 64 45 56 47 45 52 52 48 55

Room 
Revenue 4,409.00$      4,202.00$      5,385 4,430 1,900 5,180 4,170 3,117.00$      4,569.00$      2,980.00$      3,365.00$      3,568.00$      47,275.00$      

CPW 
Rentals 8 9 13 12 9 20 11 17 8 8 13 9 137

CPW 
Revenue $4,307.50 $3,457.50 $5,501 $4,950 $4,590 $10,325 $5,780 $5,340 $6,182 $4,720 $6,013 $4,465 $65,631.00

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2019 0 3 1 0

2018 5 5 8 2 5 5 2 1 4 4 3 6 50

Facility Rentals

Theme Parties



Oak Brook Park District
Facility Usage

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2017 43,582 37,431 45,170 31,760 31,932 35,136 33,194 27,695 17,587 15,789 24,693 24,856 368,825

Weekday Avg. 1,355 1,252 1,597 1,107 1,069 1,342 1,165 911 637 853 976 1,174 1,120
Weekend Avg. 1,531 1,551 1,054 1,071 736 700 944 887 467 672 896 1,037 962

2018 27,978 41,768 44,831 40,154 37,099 41,229 51,465 41,786 33,111 15,789 NA 38,518 413,728
Weekday Avg. 1,453 1,397 1,510 1,338 1,283 1,522 1,646 1,368 1,150 853 NA 1,372 1,354
Weekend Avg. 1,499 1,729 1,291 1,339 949 1,031 1,693 1,145 1,011 672 NA 1,106 1,224

2019 35,683 37,845 45,404 32,925
Weekday Avg. 1,183 1,300 1,354 946
Weekend Avg. 1,207 1,317 1,890 1,515

 Facility Usage



Oak Brook Park District 
Family Recreation Center 
Membership Usage Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2016 3,524 3,456 3,704 3,623 4,053 4,204 4,333 4,220 3,603 3,571 3,600 3,757
Resident 54% 53% 54% 56% 54% 52% 52% 52% 56% 55% 57% 56%

Non Resident 46% 47% 46% 44% 46% 48% 48% 48% 44% 45% 43% 44%
EFT 2,216 2,674 2,188 2,170 2,205 2,177 2,212 2,207 2,207 2,197 2,209 2,329

2017 3,901 3,715 3,686 3,848 4,150 4,230 4,283 3,812* 3711* 3,665* 3,751 3,859
Resident 55% 53% 53% 54% 53% 52% 52% 54% 55% 55% 53% 52%

Non Resident 45% 47% 47% 46% 47% 48% 48% 46% 45% 45% 47% 48%
EFT 2,481 2,495 2,514 2,538 2,499 2,499 2,511 2,529 2,513 2,520 2,617 2,736

2018 3,902 3,888 4,015 4,132 4,283 4,422 4,457 4,252 3,888 3,816 3,808 3,843
Resident 52% 52% 52% 52% 51% 50% 51% 52% 53% 53% 53% 52%

Non Resident 48% 48% 48% 48% 49% 50% 49% 48% 47% 47% 47% 48%
EFT 2,827 2,836 2,845 2,829 2,810 2,781 2,765 2,763 2,756 2,705 2,724 2741

2019 3,920 3,910 4,053 4,164
Resident 52% 52% 52% 51%

Non Resident 48% 48% 48% 49%
EFT 2,806 2,790 2,747 2,746

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2016 13,418 13,216 12,915 12,360 11,828 11,750 11,538 10,900 9,097 10,625 10,233 10,034

2017 12,631 11,559 12,351 11,245 14,711 16,596 17,065 12,568* 8238* 12,812 13,327 14,178

2018 15,909 13,043 16,047 14,383 14,333 14,782 15,768 13,472 11,150 13,441 13,424 13,933

2019 15,079 14,004 16,220 13,972

*Members

Usage

*Locker Room Renovation began August 14, 2017 Re-opened December 1st, 2017



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Board of Commissioners  
From:  Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning  
Date:  May 13, 2019 
Re:  Board Report  

 

• Staff has worked to prepare Central Park North for the spring soccer season. The weather has been a challenge, but 
mowing is underway, soccer goals are in place, and fields are being striped for games and practices.  

• Spring weed control and fertilizer has been applied in all the parks. Over-seeding bare and thin turf is just getting underway 
due to the recent cold and wet weather.  Portions of the south shoreline of Ginger Creek that were planted native last 
summer are being re-seeded as well.  

• Asphalt maintenance at Central Park had to be postponed due to weather, and is now tentatively scheduled for the end of 
May, weather depending. The project is expected to take 2-3 days to complete, and parking/driving lanes will be re-routed 
and re-adjusted during that time. Visitors will be notified about the disruptions via-signage and social media.  

• Two new honey bee colonies have been established at the Dean Nature Sanctuary. If the new colonies thrive, staff will 
attempt to split them into four sometime this summer. Two “buzz box” hive monitors have been purchased and will soon 
be installed. The devices collect data about the activity within the hive, which can then be shared over a network accessed 
through a smartphone app. Staff hopes to learn more about hive activity, especially during the winter months.  

• Native stewardship is underway at the Dean Nature Sanctuary. Spot weed removal was conducted in April, and over-
seeding will be complete by the end of May. Emergent plant plugs have been purchased and will be planted along the 
shoreline of the pond. In addition, floating water lilies will be added which will provide much needed shade for aquatic life 
and improve the aesthetics of the pond.  

• Wetland delineation and survey work is complete along Ginger Creek. This task had to be completed as part of the 
engineering for the site, and involves identifying the limits of areas of the shoreline and shallows that are considered 
wetland.  

• Contractors for the Illinois Tollway Authority are beginning to prune trees along I-294 in existing right-of-way passages.   

 
 

  

 

 





 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 19-0520 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING 

SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY AND 
AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OR SALE THEREOF 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 WHEREAS, the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/8-22) provides that whenever a Park 

District owns any personal property that in the opinion of three-fifths (3/5) of the Board members 

then holding office, is no longer necessary, useful to or for the best interests of the District, three-

fifths (3/5) of the Board members then holding office may, by ordinance, authorize the conveyance 

or sale of that personal property in any manner they may designate, with or without advertising for 

sale; and 

 WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) owns certain personal property 

as follows:  

Property 
Equipment Type Make Model Serial Number Reason for 

Surplus 
Method of 
Disposal 

IT Surplus 
     

Monitor Dell E178FPb CN-0RY979-74261-
7BJ-JCKL 

Outdated Recycle  

Power Supply Eaton PW5110 500 103004256-5591 Outdated Recycle  

Computer HP Pro 3500 
SERIES MT 

C9J26UT#ABA Outdated Recycle  

Computer HP Pro 3500 
SERIES MT 

D8C46UT#ABA Outdated Recycle  

Computer HP Pro 3500 
SERIES MT 

XC939UT#ABA Outdated Recycle  

Computer HP Pro 3500 
SERIES MT 

C9J26UT#ABA Outdated Recycle  

Computer  HP Pro 3500 
SERIES MT 

C9J26UT#ABA Outdated Recycle  

Switch ProCurve 1800-24G CN830ZP2LW Outdated Recycle 

Spam/Virus Filter Barracuda  BNHW001 BAR-SF-385447 Outdated Recycle 

Card Printer Zebra P110i P110001319 Outdated Recycle 

 



 

 2 

 
Equipment Type 
Description 

Quantity Model  Serial Number Reason for 
Surplus 

Method of 
Disposal 

Facilities      
Vectra - Upholstered 
guest chairs 

2  Manufactured 1996 Poor condition  Dispose 

Wooden Desk 1   Poor Condition Dispose 

Upholstered Bench 1  Manufactured 1996 Poor Condition Dispose 

 
 (hereinafter collectively referred to from time to time as the “Property”), which, according to the 

advice and recommendation of the District’s staff is no longer necessary, useful to or for the best 

interests of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s staff has recommended that the Property, except for the 

Property designated to be recycled/discarded, can best be sold by utilizing the services of Obernauf 

Auction Services, Inc., 118 N. Orchard Street, Round Lake, IL 60073, (an Illinois Auction Firm; 

License # 444.000105), who shall post the availability of such Property, with a minimum 

acceptable price as determined by the District’s Executive Director, and shall conduct the auction 

on behalf of the District by accepting bids for the purchase of the Property to the highest bidder; 

provided that, in the event that no bid is received for any portion of the Property to be sold by 

Obernauf Auction Services, Inc., any remaining Property shall be donated or disposed of as 

determined by the Executive Director; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board hereby accepts and adopts the recommendation of the District’s 

staff with respect to the Property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois as follows: 

 Section 1: The Property is hereby declared, by a three-fifths (3/5) vote of the Board 

members now holding office, to be no longer necessary or useful to or for the best interests of the 

District, and the Board hereby finds that it is in the best interest of the District to dispose of the 

Property as set forth in Section 2 of this Ordinance.  

 Section 2: The Board hereby authorizes:   

a) The sale of the Property, not designated to be discarded, by utilizing the services of 

Obernauf Auction Services, Inc., 118 N. Orchard Street, Round Lake, IL 60073, (an Illinois 



 

 3 

Auction Firm; License # 444.000105), who shall post the availability of the Property, with a 

minimum acceptable price as determined by the District’s Executive Director, and shall conduct 

the auction on behalf of the District by accepting bids for the purchase of the Property to the highest 

bidder; provided that, in the event that no bid is received for any portion of the Property to be sold 

by Obernauf Auction Services, Inc., any remaining Property shall be donated or disposed of as 

determined by the Executive Director; and 

b)  All other Property to be discarded.   

 Section 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

 Section 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval as provided by law. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 20th DAY OF MAY, 2019. 

Ayes:  ___________________________________________ 

Nays:  ___________________________________________ 

Absent:  ___________________________________________ 

 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

 

By: ____________________________________ 
       Sharon Knitter, President 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ____________________________________ 
 Laure L. Kosey, Secretary    





Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Bids were opened in the order of receipt, 11:30 a.m.,  May 9, 2019.

Tennis Center AHU # 3 Replacement and Interior Remodeling Project

Bond

Certi
fic

atio
ns

Addendum # 1

Reference
s

Base Bid

Alte
rnate

 Bid

Bidder

x x x x 221,850.00$      21,250.00$        

x x x x 218,000.00$      18,000.00$        

x x x x 263,668.00$      20,000.00$        

x x x x 290,568.00$      33,985.00$        

x x x x 193,000.00$      22,000.00$        

x x x x 252,950.00$      19,875.00$        

1 Source Mechanical, Inc.
1010 Jorie Blvd, # 390
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Amber Mechanical Contractors, Inc.
11950 S. Central Ave
Alsip, IL 60803-9700

MG Mechanical Contracting, Inc.
1513 Lamb Road
Woodstock, IL 60098
Kandu Construction, Inc.
3756 W. Devon Ave.
Lincolnwood, IL 60712
Paul Borg Construction Company
2007 South Marshall Boulevard
Chicago, IL 60623
Core Mechanical, Inc.
4632 W. Lawrence Ave
Chicago, IL 60630

The low bidder, Amber Mechanical Contractors, Inc. contacted Kluber Architects + Engineers 
and the Park District immediately following the bid opening and stated that they made an 
error in their pricing and wished to pull their bid due to this error. 

A scope review was conducted with the next lowest bidder, Kandu Construction, Inc.  After 
the review and speaking with Kandu's references, staff is recommending for the Board of 
Commissioners to accept the base bid from Kandu Construction, Inc. for a not to exceed price 
of $218,000.

Due to budget constraints, the Alternate Bid will not be accepted.



AMBER MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, INC. 
11950 S. CENTRAL AVE. 
ALSIP, IL 60803-3402 
PHONE: 708-597-9700 
FAX: 708-597-5875 

 
 
 
 

 

 
BID WITHDRAW LETTER revised  

                             

 
To:        Charli johnsos - CJOHNSOS@KLUBERINC.COM  -  630-549-5372 
Cc:        Oak Brook Park District  
Re:        Oak Brook Tennis Center AHU3 & Renovations 
 
Date:     5-9-2019 
 
 
I wanted to reach out to you asap to let you know I had an error in my bid.   
 

We had 4 bids due today & in my haste, I didn’t add $41,000 to my bid for General Trades 
work, as seen in the screen shot of my sub-contractor portion of my spread sheet below: 

 
My base bid read today was $193,000 - without the needed $41,000 for GC work. 
 
The correct math should be:  
$193,000 + $43,050 ($41,000 + $2,050 (5%OHP)) = $236,050 
 
If I did not make this error, my bid would have been $236,050 & NOT $193,000 which is under 
our job cost.  
 
For this reason, we will need to unfortunately pull our bid. 
 
I do this every day for a living and take this very seriously.  I can provide references if need to 
speak to our integrity & loyal service to this industry since 1959.   
 
We apologize for this mistake & look forward to the next opportunity with Oak Brook / Kluber!!!   
 
Please contact me with any questions & confirm that you will send our bid bond back. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,                
 
         

      
James D. Major                
Chief Project Estimator                                                                                                 
 

 





 
 
851160v1A 

 1 

 2019 AMENDMENT TO OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
THIS 2019 AMENDMENT TO OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“2019 Amendment”) is made this 1st day of May, 
2019, by and between the OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois unit of local government 
(hereinafter referred to as "District") and Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director for the District 
(hereinafter referred to as "Director"). 
 

WHEREAS, District and the Director entered an “Oak Brook Park District Executive 
Director Employment Agreement” on February 5, 2010 (the “Employment Agreement”), to 
establish the terms and conditions of the Director’s employment as the District’s Executive 
Director; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and the Director amended the Employment Agreement on June 

13, 2011, April 9, 2012, March 18, 2013, May 1, 2016, and May 1, 2018 to provide for 
modifications to certain terms and conditions for compensation, reimbursement of expenses and 
automobile allowance for the Director; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and the Director have determined that it is necessary and desirable 

to further amend the Employment Agreement in accordance with the terms of this 2019 
Amendment, to provide for an extension of the term of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore 
amended, and compensation for the Director for the term of the Employment Agreement, as 
amended herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 

agreements herein contained, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. 2019 AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT.   The District and the Director 
hereby agree to the following amendments to the Employment Agreement:  
 

(A) Delete Section 2 of the Employment Agreement, and substitute the following: 
 

2. TERM.  The term of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore amended, 
shall be extended from May 1, 2019, through April 30, 2022, subject to the 
provisions hereinafter set forth concerning termination and appropriation of 
sufficient funds.  

 
(B) Delete Section 4 of the Employment Agreement, and substitute the following: 
 

4. COMPENSATION.   
 



 
 
851160v1A 

 2 

 a. The Director’s base gross compensation from May 1, 2019, through 
April 30, 2022, shall be payable biweekly in the amount of $6,230.02, less 
customary withholdings, annualized to One Hundred Sixty-One Thousand, 
Nine Hundred Eighty Dollars and Forty-Two Cents ($161,980.42).   

 
b. The Director shall receive a performance bonus in the gross amount 
of $10,000.00, less customary withholdings, effective May 1, 2019, and 
shall be eligible to receive a bonus on or before April 30 of each subsequent 
year of the Employment Agreement.   
 

 c. The Director shall receive an automobile allowance in the amount 
of Four Hundred Twenty Dollars ($420.00) per month for the term of the 
Employment Agreement, as amended. 

 
 e. Nothing herein shall preclude the District from offering the Director 

additional bonuses or increases as the Board may deem appropriate, in its 
sole discretion, during the term of the Employment Agreement, as amended. 

 
 (C) Delete the last two sentences in the last paragraph of Section 7 and replace with the 
following: 
 
  7. TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE. 
 
   If this Employment Agreement is terminated by the District other than for 
cause as aforesaid, the Director shall be entitled to receive severance compensation in amount not 
to exceed twenty (20) weeks from the date of termination, and benefits shall be continued as they 
otherwise would be continued upon termination of an employee in accordance with the policies of 
the District and applicable law.  No other remedy or damage shall be available to the Director as 
against the District on account of such termination without cause.  In no event shall the Director 
be entitled to any severance compensation if the Director is terminated for cause.   
 
 (D) Delete Section 13 and replace with the following:   
 
 
 13. RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT.  
 

                      If this Employment Agreement is renewed, the Director shall be entitled to 
an annual increase for each year of the renewal term, as determined by the Board in its sole 
discretion based on the Director’s performance.  The Board shall endeavor to notify the Director 
of any approved annual increase at least thirty (30) days prior to commencement of the new 
renewal term.   

 
 



 
 
851160v1A 

 3 

2. CONTINUED EFFECTIVENES OF OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT.  Except as provided in Section 1 of this 2019 
Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore 
amended, shall continue in full force and effect for the term of the Employment Agreement, as 
amended herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the day above 

first written. 
 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:  
       LAURE L. KOSEY 
 
By: _______________________________ ____________________________________  
 Sharon Knitter     Laure L. Kosey 
        Its President    
 
 
   







  DRM 11-07-18 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSERVATION EASEMENT 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSERVATION EASEMENT (“Amendment”) is made this ____ 
day of ________, 2018 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Oak Brook Park District, an Illinois unit of 
local government,  1450 Forest Gate Road, Oak Brook Illinois 60521 (“Park District” or “Grantor”) and 
The Conservation Foundation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, organized and operating pursuant to 
the Illinois Not-for-profit Corporation Act, 10 S. 404 Knoch Knolls Road, Naperville, Illinois 60565 
(“Foundation” or “Grantee”). The Park District and the Foundation are sometimes referred to herein as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  

RECITALS 

A. Park District is owner in fee simple to certain real property legally described in First Amendment 
Exhibit No. 1 attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (the “Protected Property”).  
 

B. On November 13, 1995, the Park District granted certain rights to the Foundation pursuant to the 
Real Property Conservation Rights Act, 765 ILCS 120.0.01 et seq., in two documents titled “Grant 
of Conservation Right in the form of an Easement,” (Conservation Easement”) and “Memorandum 
of Understanding: Dorothy Dean (“Mrs. Dean”)—Oak Brook Park District—Conservation 
Foundation of DuPage County” (“MOU”), and a copy of said documents are attached hereto  as 
First Amendment Exhibit No. 2, incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

C. The Parties now wish to amend the Conservation Easement in order to further enhance the public 
experience at the Protected Property and to further the objectives of the Conservation Easement.  

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged by both Parties, the Grantor and Grantee do hereby amend the Conservation Easement as 
follows:  

1. Amendment to Conservation Easement.  The Conservation Easement is hereby amended by the 
deletion of Section 1 of the Grantor’s covenants (commencing at the end of p. 2 of the Conservation 
Easement) and replacement of said Section 1 with the following:  
 

[In furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights of the Grantee, the Grantor makes the 
following covenants which shall run with and bind the Protected Property in perpetuity, 
namely that on the Protected Property , the Grantor, without the prior written consent of the 
Grantee, shall not]   

1. Construct or place on the Protected Property any residential, commercial, 
industrial, office building, camping accommodations, or mobile homes, commercial 
advertising signs, billboards, dikes, berms, additional utilities (underground or 
overhead) or any other structures or improvements which are not consistent with the 
terms of this Conservation Easement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantor and 
Grantee agree to the following:  

A. Pursuant to the terms of the MOU entered into contemporaneously with 
the Conservation Easement, the Parties and Mrs. Dean intended to use 
the barn, personal residence (the “Dean Home”) and other buildings then 



2 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

located on the Protected Property, for the maintenance of the Protected 
Property and, as the Park District might determine in its discretion, the 
development of such buildings as a nature center so that the public would 
have a facility in which it might receive education, instruction and 
otherwise learn about nature preservation, wildlife, vegetation, 
husbandry and subjects and matters related to or part of the natural 
environment and its care.  

 
B. In 2011, the Park District assessed the possibility of developing the Dean 

Home into a nature sanctuary for public use, whereupon it was 
discovered that the Dean Home contained asbestos and mold and was in 
need of extensive repair and renovation. Grantee further determined that 
the costs associated with restoration and retrofitting of the Dean Home 
for use as a Nature Center was financially prohibitive, and with the 
Foundation’s consent, the home was demolished in November of 2011.   

 
C. Following extensive consultation with Grantee, Grantor developed a 

conceptual plan to design, construct, operate and maintain a nature 
center, separate restroom facility, nature playground (adjacent to the 
nature center), and a “grass grid” driveway to allow emergency access 
to the Graue Mill Condo Community (collectively, the “Nature Center 
Improvements”), all where tentatively indicated on the preliminary 
concept plan (“Concept Plan”), attached to this First Amendment to 
Conservation Easement hereto as First Amendment Exhibit No. 3.  

 
D. Grantor subsequently prepared and submitted to Grantee an application 

for amendment to the Conservation Easement, with the requisite 
Concept Plan and application fee (collectively the “Application”), to 
secure Foundation approval of the Nature Center Improvements. The 
Application is attached hereto as First Amendment Exhibit No. 4.  

 
E. Grantee examined the Application and the Concept Plan to determine its 

sufficiency under Grantee’s Conservation Easement Amendments Land 
Conservation Policy (“Easement Amendment Policy”) attached hereto 
as First Amendment Exhibit No. 5, and applicable law, and determined 
that:  

 
1) The Nature Center Improvements are consistent with the purpose 

and intent of the Conservation Easement;  
2) The level of protection of the conservation values contained in the 

Conservation Easement will be the same or greater following 
adoption of this Amendment;  

3) This Amendment updates obsolete terms contained in the 
Conservation Easement pertaining to use of the original barn, 
house and related buildings; 

4) This Amendment meets the requirements of Sections 3 and 6 of 
Grantee’s Easement Amendment Policy; 



3 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

5) This Amendment is consistent with the Real Property 
Conservation Rights Act and all other governing law applicable to 
the Conservation Easement as defined therein.  

 
F. Based on the findings set forth in Subsection E immediately above, 

Grantee has approved Grantor’s Application for the design, 
construction, operation, and maintenance of the Nature Center 
Improvements as generally described in First Amendment Exhibit 
Nos. 3 and 4 hereof, subject to the following conditions:   

 
1) Grantee shall have the right to prior review and approval of all site 

plans, architectural and engineering plans, and elevations, 
provided that said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
delayed or conditioned.  

2) Grantee shall have the right to prior review and approval of any 
and all plans and specifications required by any entity with 
jurisdiction over the design and construction of the Nature Center 
Improvements, including but not by limitation, zoning and 
building codes, stormwater ordinances, and wetlands regulations 
and all other applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and codes 
of the Village of Oak Brook, DuPage County, the state of Illinois 
or the federal government; provided that no approval under this 
subsection shall be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned.  

3) Grantor will include appropriate interpretative signage.  
4) Grantor shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses 

related to the permitting, design, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the Nature Center Improvements.  

5) Grantor shall provide Grantee with a current schedule during the 
construction of the Nature Center Improvements.  

6) Grantor shall require its architects, engineers and contractors to 
comply with all applicable federal, state, county, and local 
statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, and codes in the design and 
construction of the Nature Center Improvements. 

7) Grantor shall notify Grantee of any concealed or unknown 
conditions promptly upon Grantor’s discovery of same.  

8) Grantor shall require its contractors to confine its operations to 
areas that in Grantor’s reasonable discretion will minimize the 
impact on the Protected Property.  

9) Grantee agrees to cooperate with Grantor in any attempt by 
Grantor to secure any third party financial assistance for the 
design, construction, operation and maintenance of the Nature 
Center Improvements. 

10) Grantor shall indemnify and hold Grantee harmless from any 
claims, liability, costs, attorney fees, judgments or expenses to 
Grantee or any officer, employee, agent or independent contractor 
of Grantee resulting from actions or claims of any nature by third 



4 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

parties arising from any work or actions taken under this 
Amendment by Grantor or any employee, contractor, agent or 
other person or entity undertaking any work or actions on behalf 
of Grantor.  

 
G. Subject to the conditions set forth in Subsection F immediately above, 

Grantor is hereby authorized to proceed with design and construction of 
any of the Nature Center Improvements at such time as Grantor 
determines to be appropriate, in its sole and absolute discretion. Grantor 
and Grantee acknowledge that Grantor has included the restroom 
facilities in its capital improvements plan to occur within the next ten 
(10) years, but that no deadline for construction and opening of said 
restroom facilities or any of the other Nature Center Improvements is 
established by this Amendment.  

 
H. Grantor and Grantee further acknowledge and agree that:  

 
1) Grantor will endeavor to build the education center at a location 

that minimizes site impact and mitigates disturbances to the 
hydrological cycle.  

2) The location of the former Dean Home is an appropriate location 
for the nature center, acceptable to Grantee.  

3) The nature center and restroom building will be designed and 
constructed according to sound environmental practices and in a 
manner that blends said improvements into the natural 
surroundings.  

4) Grantor and its contractors are further granted the authority to do 
the following to the minimum extent necessary to construct and 
maintain the Nature Center Improvements:  

a. Upgrade parking to meet ADA requirements and install 
a grass access way for adjoining residential 
development;  

b. Cut live or standing dead trees, grasses and forbs as 
needed;  

c. Cut, and/or fill, grade and/or otherwise change the 
topography of the Protected Property as needed;  

d. Excavate and install, and grant easements for the 
excavation, installation, operation and maintenance of 
any and all improvements necessary to provide utility 
services to the Nature Center Improvements, including 
but not by limitation, services for water, gas, cable, 
electric, stormwater, sanitary services where required, 
provided that the Parties agree to locate required utilities 
along the corridor of the existing roadway to the greatest 
extent possible;  

e. Stage vehicles, equipment and materials as required for 
construction.  



5 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

f. Provide for ingress and egress of construction vehicles, 
material and workers;  

g. Install temporary construction fencing, water removal;  
h. Take and perform such other actions as may be 

reasonably necessary to complete construction in 
accordance with customary practices.  
 

5) Grantor shall transmit copies of any and all permits, licenses, 
authorizations, ordinances, and letters of approval pertaining to 
the design and construction of the Nature Center Improvements 
upon receipt of same.  

6) Grantee shall have the right to review minutes of construction 
meetings and consult with Grantor’s project architect, general 
contractor or construction manager as the case may be, in order 
to confirm that construction is proceeding according to 
approved plans and specifications.  

7) Grantor shall require all construction managers, architects, 
engineers, contractors, subcontractors and suppliers to procure 
and maintain insurance in such types and amounts as are 
customarily provided by such entities to Grantor on its public 
construction projects. Grantor shall require all entities providing 
labor, material or services for the design or construction of the 
Nature Center Improvements to name Grantee as an additional 
insured for applicable coverages. Grantor shall require all 
contractors to provide performance and payment bonds if and as 
required by the Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550/1 
et seq.  

8) Upon completion of the construction, Grantor shall provide 
Grantee with a final set of marked-up plans and specifications 
or as-built drawings for the Nature Center Improvements.  

 
2. Remaining Conservation Easement Provisions.  All other provisions, terms and conditions of the 

Conservation Easement not modified by this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect 
without revision.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Amendment and the 
provisions of the Conservation Easement, the provisions of this Amendment will control. 
 

3. Nature of Amendment. This First Amendment to Conservation Easement is a conservation right in 
the form of an easement and shall be recorded in the office of the DuPage County Recorder of 
Deeds by the Grantee promptly following its execution in full. Once recorded, Grantee shall direct 
the Recorder to cause a copy of this Amendment to be mailed to the Illinois Department of Natural 
Resources. 
 

4. Amendment Runs with Land. The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in this 
First Amendment to Conservation Easement shall be binding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and 
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns, and shall constitute 
servitudes running with the Protected Property in perpetuity.  



6 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

 

5. Applicable Law and Attorney Fees. This Amendment shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, and the parties hereto hereby agree and consent to 
submit themselves to any court of competent jurisdiction situated in DuPage County, Illinois. In 
any action to enforce any of the terms of this Amendment, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois unit of local 
government, and THE CONSERVATION FOUNDATION, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation hereby 
agree to this First Amendment to Conservation Easement by causing this instrument to be signed and sealed 
this ___ day of __________, 2018.  

 

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois unit of  
local government  
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Sharon Knitter, President 
 Oak Brook Park District 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Laure Kosey, Secretary 
 Oak Brook Park District 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
 
 
THE CONSERVATION FOUNDATION, an Illinois  
not-for-profit corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Brook McDonald, President/CEO 
 The Conservation Foundation 
 
ATTEST:  
 
By: _______________________________ 

[Title] 
 

  



7 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT EXHIBIT NO. 1 

 
 

THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 
11, LYING EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

  



8 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT EXHIBIT NO. 2 
 

[MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND GRANT OF CONSERVATION RIGHT IN 
THE FORM OF AN EASEMENT 
DATED NOVEMBER 13, 1995] 

 

  



1 

Doroihy Dton CtHHcugh 
IS Ctnkrbtrry Lane 

Oak Brook, lUinoi* 60521 

November 10, 1995 

Conservation Foundation of 
DuPage County 

c/o Scott M. Day 
Attorneys at Law 
300 E. 5th Avenue 
Suite 365 
Naperville, Illinois 60563 

re; Donation of the Dean Farm 
15 Canterberry Lane 
Oak Brook, Illinois 
As the Dorothy and Sam Dean 
Nature Sanctuary 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Per our conversations and understanding, enclosed please find 
a deed to the Foundation of my interest in the Dean Farm. This 
deed is a donation to the work of the Foundation and as part of 
that work, the farm is to be kept as a nature sanctuary. To 
accomplish this goal, it is understood that the Foundation may, by 
mesne conveyance, transfer the Farm to the Oak Brook Park 
District. In such event, the Foundation shall obtain from the Park 
District an easement, Including covenants# conditions and 
restrictions, providing that the farm will be kept as a nature 
sanctuary. Any such easement document is to be approved by me 
before any transfer is consummated. In the event the Foundation 
obtains funds from the transfer to the Park District, those funds 
shall be held and expended by the Foundation from the "Dorothy and 
Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary Endowment." Such Endowment shall be used 
by the Foundation to acquire and preserve open space in and around 
the DuPage County area. Further, the Foundation has advised me 
that it is a charitable, religious or educational foundation 
having been granted exemption under Section 501(C)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and that contributions to it are Mtax 
deductible" under that code. 

I appreciate the work you are doing in our community to 
enhance our natural environment, and hope that this donation will 
enable you to carry on with your efforts in making our community a 

" more healthful and better place. 

() 

Very truly yours, 

Dorothy Dean Cavenaugh 
i/and agreed to. 
f is ^•i$' 

Accepte 
Date: 

ConseryMion Foundation of 
DuPa^Cognty 

By; 
_^J?re8ident 

TOTAL P.02 



r* 

GRANT OF CONSERVATION RIGHT IN THE FORM OF AN EASEMENT 

THIS INDENTURE, made this 1^ day of rcf-ê ker . 1995f by and 
between OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, a body politic and corporate 
(hereinafter called "Grantor"), and the CONSERVATION FOUNDATION OF 
DUPAGE COUNTY (formerly the Forest Foundation), a not-for-profit 
corporation whose primary purpose includes the conservation of 
land, natural areas, open space and water areas under the Real 
Property Conservation Rights Act, as amended from time to time, 765 
ILCS 120/0.01, ei sea.f (hereinafter "Grantee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple subject to a life 
estate of certain real property as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter called the "Protected 
Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee is dedicated to the preservation of 
natural areas and resources in DuPage County, and is empowered to 
acquire an interest in real estate through easement under the Real 
Property Conservation Rights Act, as amended from time to time, 765 
ILCS 120/0.01, seq.. with an office at 703 Warrenville Road, 
Wheaton, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Protected Property has significant natural, 
scenic, and aesthetic value in its present state to the Grantee and 
to the general public, and has functional environmental value 
related to wetland preservation and flood water management; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee further desires and intends that the 
ecological, open space and aesthetic values of the Protected 
Property including, without limitation, scenic views, wetland 
preservation, and flood water management, be preserved and 
ma inta ined; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the 
Grantee of a Conservation Right in the form of an Easement under 
the terms of an "Act relating to Conservation Rights in Real 
Property," approved and effective September 12, 1977, Public Acts 
80-584 (Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 30, Section 401, et 
sea.) as 765 ILCS Ch. 120/0.01, et sea., amended from time to time 
(hereinafter called the "Property Conservation Act"), on, over and 
across the Protected Property, desire and intend to prevent the use 
or development of the Protected Property for any purpose or in any 
manner inconsistent with the terms of this Conservation Easement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee recognize the uniqueness of 
the Protected Property, and the scenic, aesthetic and special 
natural character of the Protected Property including the mixed 
hardwood trees, native grass and forbs, wildlife, the ponds. 

EXHIBIT C 



r* 

floodplain and wetlands located therein, and have the common 
purpose of conserving the natural values of the Protected Property 
by the conveyance of a Conservation Easement over and across the 
Protected Property; and 

WHEREAS, Grantor and Grantee recognize that the ponds, 
wetlands and wooded areas located on the Protected Property will 
provide valuable habitat for wildlife and will maintain water 
recharge areas; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee is accepting this Conservation Easement 
subject to the reservations and to the covenants, terms, conditions 
and restrictions set out herein and imposed hereby. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and in consideration of TEN 
DOLLARS and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged by the Grantor, does hereby convey 
and grant unto the Grantee and to its successors and assigns, 
forever, a Conservation Easement in perpetuity on, over, and across 
the Protected Property consisting solely of the following; 

The right of the Grantee and the general public to view 
and traverse the Protected Property in its scenic and present 
condition on trails and in areas therefore designated and from 
public areas such as streets, picnic areas, and the like; and 

The right of the Grantee to enforce by proceedings at law 
or in equity the covenants hereinafter set forth, it being agreed 
that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of Grantee's right to 
insure compliance with the covenants and conditions of this Grant 
by reason of any prior failure of Grantee to act; and 

The right of the Grantee to enter the Protected Property 
only at reasonable times and with prior notice to Grantor for the 
limited purpose of inspecting the Protected Property to determine 
if the Grantor is complying with the covenants and conditions of 
this Conservation Easement. 
Grantor for any liability, cost or expense related in any way to 
the Grantee's inspection of the Protected Property. 

In furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights of the 
Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants which shall run 
with and bind the Protected Property in perpetuity, namely, that on 
the Protected Property, the Grantor, without the prior written 
consent of the Grantee, shall not: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

The Grantee shall indemnify the 

Construct or place on the Protected Property any 
residential, commercial, industrial, office building, camping 
accommodations or mobile homes, commercial advertising signs, 
billboards, dikes, berms, additional utilities (underground or 
overhead) or any other structures or improvements which are not 
consistent with the terms of this Conservation Easement. This does 

1. 

2 



not mean, however, that the Grantor or the Life Tenant may not 
maintain, repair, or preserve, and in so doing alter the existing 
residence and barn on the Property for permitted uses of those 
buildings. 

Construct public roads or dedicate rights of way for 
roads on the Protected Property other than public access ways and 
parking for the Grantor's public open space uses. 

Fill, dredge, mine, dike, or change the topography of the 
land on the Protected Property except in order to enhance its 
ecological character or persons to applicable law, rule or 
regulation. 

2. 

3. 

Cut live or standing dead trees, grasses, and forbs, 
except as and when necessary to protect the natural, scenic, open 
space, and ecological values of the Protect Property or to control 
or prevent non-native species, imminent hazard, disease or fire or 
to restore natural habitat areas or native vegetation. 

4. 

Subdivide the Protected Property in any manner whether 5. 
legal or de facto. 

6. Dump, place or store, or permit to be dumped, placed or 
stored, ashes, trash, waste, garbage, vehicle bodies or parts or 
other unsightly or offensive material, provided that the Grantor 
may employ sound conservation practices such as prescribed burning 
and brush control, in order to restore and manage the natural 
resources on the Protected Property. 

7. Permit any activity on the Protected Property by Grantor 
or its successors and their respective agents and employees, 
licensees, and invitees detrimental to land conservation or any use 
that would change the natural character of the Protected Property; 
provided, however, the Grantor may from and after the date hereof 
plant and harvest on the Protected Property native grasses, forbs, 
shrubs, trees and bushes so long as any such activity does not 
violate any of the other restrictions set forth in the preceding 
clauses 1 through 6 inclusive. 

8. Permit the operation of snowmobiles, dune buggies, 
motorcycles, all terrain vehicles or any other type of motorized 
vehicle over the Protected Property by Grantor or its successors 
and their respective agents and employees, licensees, and invitees 
except on access ways and parking lots on the Property or when used . 
in conjunction with sound conservation management activities and so 
long as any such activity does not violate any of the other 
restrictions set forth in the preceding clauses 1 through 7, 
inclusive. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said Conservation Easement unto the 
Grantee and its respective successors and assigns forever. 

3 



Except as'expressly limited herein, the Grantor reserves all 
rights as owner of the Protected Property to use the Protected 
Property for open space purposes and all other purposes not 
inconsistent with this Conservation Easement, including passive 
recreational uses and other recreational use as approved by 
Grantee. 

Grantee agrees that it will hold this Conservation Easement 
exclusively for conservation purposes, and that the Grantee will 
not assign its respective rights and obligations under this 
Conservation Easement except to another organization or agency 
whose primary purposes include the conservation of land, natural 
areas, open space, or water areas, or the preservation of native 
plants or animals, and is qualified to hold such interests under 
applicable state laws and that each instrument of subsequent 
conveyance shall expressly require the agreement of the assignee or 
transferee to be bound by the terms and provisions hereof, 
including, without limitation, the agreements of the Grantee as set 
forth herein and not in exchange for money, or other property or 
services. 

If any provision of this Conservation Easement, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances, is found to be 
invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this Conservation 
Easement, and the application of such provision to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is found to be 
invalid, shall not be affected thereby. 

The Grantor retains all responsibilities and shall bear all 
costs and liabilities of any kind related to the ownership, 
operation, upkeep and maintenance of the Protected Property, 
including the maintenance from time to time of adequate 
comprehensive general liability coverage relating thereto. 

The Grantor and Grantee each agree that the covenants, terms, 
conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Conservation 
Easement shall be binding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and 
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, 
successors and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes running 
with the Protected Property in perpetuity. 

The Grantor and, by its acceptance hereof, the Grantee, agree 
as follows: 

Whenever the Grantee's approval is required hereunder, 
such approval may be withheld only upon a reasonable determination 
by the Grantee that the action as proposed would be inconsistent 
with the purposes of this Conservation Easement. 

No right of access by the general public to any portion 
of the protected Property is conveyed by this Conservation Easement 

1. 

2. 

4 



but this provision shall not be deemed to affect the right of the 
Grantor to grant such access. 

3. The interpretation and performance of this Conservation 
Easement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Illinois. 

4. The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set 
forth in this Conservation Easement shall be binding upon the 
Grantor and the Grantee and their respective agents, personal 
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns, and shall 
constitute servitudes running with the Protected Property in 
perpetuity. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, a body politic 
and corporate, hereby grants the foregoing Conservation Easement by 
causing this instrument to be signed and sealed this /A 

, 1995. 
day of 

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, a body 
corporate and politic 

By: 
-President 

ATTEy? ;C ̂  rfdjC J* 
Segretary 

ILS 

V 

ACCEPTANCE 

The foregoing Conservation Right and restriction is hereby 
duly accepted by the Grantee,./the CONSERVATION FOUNDATION OF DUPAGE 
COUNTY, thirty ri day of , 1995. 

CONSERVATION FOUNDATION OF DU PAGE 
COUNTY, fanTIllinois not-for-profit 
corpora-m^o i ^ 

By: 
Rcfberb^&chillerstrom. President 

ATTEST: 

5 



GRAKT OF QQH8KRVATI0N RIGHT 1H THE FORM QF AN EASEMENT 

THIS INDENTURE, wad© this 
between OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, 

, 1995, by and 
a body politic and corporate 

(hereinafter called "Grantor*1) f and the CONSERVATION FOUNDATION OF 
DUPAGE COUNTY (formerly the Forest Foundation), a not-for-profit 
corporation whose primary purpose includes the conservation of 
land, natural areas, open space and water areas under the Real 
Property Conservation Rights Act, as amended from time to time, 765 
I LOS 120/0.01, fifig*/ (hereinafter "Grantee1'). 

day of 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple subject to a life 
estate of certain real property as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter called the "Protected 
Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee is dedicated to the preservation of 
natural areas and resources in DuPage County, and is empowered to 
acquire an interest in real estate through easement under the Real 
Property Conservation Rights Act, as amended from time to time, 7 65 
ILCS 120/0.01, , with an office at 703 Warrenville Road, 
Wheaton, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Protected Property has significant natural, 
scenic, and aesthetic value in its present state to the Grantee and 
to the general public, and has functional environmental value 
related to wetland preservation and flood water management? and 

WHEREAS., the Grantee further desires and intends that the 
ecological, 'open space and aesthetic values of the Protected 
Property including, without limitation, scenic views, wetland 
preservation, and flood water management, be preserved and 
maintained; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantea, by the conveyance to the 
Grantee of a Conservation Right in the form of an Easement under 
the terms of an "Act relating to Conservation Rights in Real 
Property," approved and effective September 12, 1977, Public Acts 
80-584 (Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 30, Section 401, et 
S-eg-) as 765 ILCS Ch. 120/0.01, ££g. , amended from time to time 
(hereinafter called the "Property Conservation Act"), on, over and 
across the Protected Property, desire and intend to prevent the use 
or development of the Protected Property for any purpose or in any 
manner inconsistent with the terms of this Conservation Easement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee recognize the uniqueness of 
the Protected Property, and the scenic, aesthetic and special 
natural character of the Protected Property including the mixed 
hardwood trees, native grass and forbs, wildlife, the ponds, 

EXHIBIT 0 

FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



f • 

floodplain and wetlands located therein, and have the common 
purpose of conserving the natural values of the Protected Property 
by the conveyance of a Conservation Easement over and across the 
Protected Property; and 

WHEREAS, Grantor and Grantee recognize that the ponds, 
wetlands and wooded areas located on the Protected Property will 
provide valuable habitat for wildlife and will maintain water 
recharge areas; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee is accepting this Conservation Easement 
subject to the reservations and to the covenants, terms, conditions 
and restrictions set out herein and imposed hereby. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and in consideration of TEN 
DOLLARS and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged by the Grantor, does hereby convey 
and grant unto the Grantee and to its successors and assigns, 
forever, a Conservation Easement in perpetuity on, over, and across 
the Protected Property consisting solely of the following; 

1. The right of the Grantee and the general public to view 
and traverse the Protected Property in its scenic and present 
condition on trails and in areas therefore designated and from 
public areas such as streets, picnic areas, and the like; and 

2. The right of the Grantee to enforce by proceedings at law 
or in equity the covenants hereinafter set forth, it being agreed 
that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of Grantee's right to 
insure compliance with the covenants and conditions of this Grant 
by reason of any prior failure of Grantee to act; and 

3. The right of the Grantee to enter the Protected Property 
only at reasonable times and with prior notice to Grantor for the 
limited purpose of inspecting the Protected Property to determine 
if the Grantor is complying with the covenants and conditions of 
this Conservation Easement. The Grantee shall indemnify the 
Grantor for any liability, cost or expense related in any way to 
the Grantee's inspection of the Protected Property. 

In furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights of the 
Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants which shall run 
with and bind the Protected Property in perpetuity, namely, that on 
the Protected Property, the Grantor, without the prior written 
consent of the Grantee, shall not: 

1. Construct or place on the Protected Property any 
residential, commercial, industrial, office building, camping 
accommodations or mobile homes, conunercial advertising signs, 
billboards, dikes, berme, additional utilities (underground or 
overhead) or any other structures or improvements which are not 
consistent with the terms of this Conservation Easement. This does 

2 

FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



f • 

not nean, howavor, that the Grantor or the Life Tenant may not 
maintain, repair, or preserve, and in so doing alter the existing 
residence and barn on the Property for permitted uses of those 
buildings. 

Construct public roads or dedicate rights of way for 
roads on the Protected Property other than public access ways and 
parking for the Grantor's public open space uses. 

2. 

Fill, dredge, mine, dike, or change the topography of the • 3. 
land on the Protected Property except in order to enhance its 
ecological character or persons to applicable law, 
regulation. 

rule or 

Cut live or standing dead trees, grasses, and forbs, 
except as and when necessary to protect the natural, scenic, open 
space, and ecological values of the Protect Property or to control 
or prevent non-native species, imminent hazard, disease or fire or 
to restore natural habitat areas or native vegetation. 

4. 

Subdivide the Protected Property in any manner whether 5. 
legal or de facto. 

Dump, place or store, or permit to be dumped, placed or 
stored, ashes, trash, waste, garbage, vehicle bodies or parts or 
other unsightly or offensive material, provided that the Grantor 
may employ sound conservation practices such as prescribed burning 
and brush control, in order to restore and manage the natural 
resources on the Protected Property. 

Permit any activity on the Protected Property by Grantor 
or its successors and their respective agents and employees, 
licensees, and invitees detrimental to land conservation or any use 
that would change the natural character of the Protected Property; 
provided, however, the Grantor may from and after the date hereof 
plant and harvest on the Protected Property native grasses, forbs, 
shrubs, trees and bushes so long as any such activity does not 
violate any of the other restrictions set forth in the preceding 
clauses 1 through 6 inclusive. 

Permit the operation of snowmobiles, dune buggies, 
motorcycles, all terrain vehicles or any other type of motorized 
vehicle over the Protected Property by Grantor or its successors 
and their respective agents and employees, licensees, and invitees 
except on access ways and parking lots on the Property or when used 
in conjunction with sound conservation management activities and so 
long as any such activity does not violate any of the other 
restrictions set forth in the preceding clauses 1 through 7, 
inclusive. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said Conservation Easement unto the 
Grantee and its respective successors and assigns forever. 

3 

FINAL DRAFr-01/12/96 



*0 j 

Except as •xpreaely limited herein, the Grantor reserves all 
rights as owner of the Protected Property to use the Protected 
Property for open space purposes and all other purposes not 
inconsistent with this Conservation Easement, including passive 
recreational uses and other recreational use as approved by 
Grantee. 

Grantee agrees that it will hold this Conservation Easement 
exclusively for conservation purposes, and that the Grantee will 
not assign its respective rights and obligations under this 
Conservation Easement except to another organization or agency 
whose primary purposes include the conservation of land, natural 
areas, open space, or water areas, or the preservation of native 
plants or animals, and is qualified to hold such interests under 
applicable state laws and that each instrument of subsequent 
conveyance shall expressly require the agreement of the assignee or 
transferee to be bound by the terms and provisions hereof, 
including, without limitation, the agreements of the Grantee as set 
forth herein and not in exchange for money, or other property or 
services. 

If any provision of this Conservation Easement, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances, is found to be 
invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this Conservation 
Easement, and the application of such provision to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is found to be 
invalid, shall not be affected thereby. 

The Grantor retains all responsibilities and shall bear all 
costs and liabilities of any kind related to the ownership, 
operation, upXeep and maintenance of the Protected Property, 
including the maintenance from time to time of • adequate 
comprehensive general liability coverage relating thereto. 

The Grantor and Grantee each agree that the covenants, terms, 
conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Conservation 
Easement shall be binding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and 
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, 
successors and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes running 
with the Protected Property in perpetuity. 

The Grantor and, by its acceptance hereof, the Grantee, agree 
as follows; 

1. Whenever the Grantee's approval is required hereunder, 
such approval may be withheld only upon a reasonable determination 
by the Grantee that the action as proposed would be inconsistent 
with the purposes of this Conservation Easement. 

No right of access by the general public to any portion 
of the protected Property is conveyed by this Conservation Easement 

2. 

4 

FINAL DRAFT.01/12/96 



11/02/1995 15:29 J-KUTI H I U (J & il TO *095005317086379814» P.03 

M E M O R A N D U M  O F  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  
Dorothy Dean — Oak Brook Park DWrtcl—ConMTvatton 

( Foundation of DuPage County 
Dorothy and Sam Dean Nafare Sanctuary, Canlerberry Ume, Oak Brook, Illinois 

Oak Brook Park District, an incorporated 
Illinois general park district (the ^District") 

Parties; 

and 

Dorothy Dean PMrs, Dean") 

and 

Conservation Foundation of DuPage CountVi an 
Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the 
^Foundation") 

November , 1995 

The Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary 
Canterberry Lane 
Oak Brook, Illinois 
(the ""Nature Sanctuary") 

Background: Mrs, Dean is in the process of making a donation 
of her residence and surrounding property, the 
Dean Farm, 15 Canterberry Lane, Oak Brook, 
Illinois as a nature sanctuary. This donation is 
part of a complex t-ransact i on involving the 
District, the Foundation, McDonald's Corporation 
and the Harris Trust and Saving Bank as the 
Trustee of the Sam E. Dean Insurance Trust (the 
"Trust"). In this transaction, Mrs, Dean is 
reserving a life estate, , the" Foundation is 
receiving the sum of $1,25 Million, the Trust is 
receiving the sum §1,5 Million and the District 
is obtaining the Nature Sanctuary (which has a 
fair market value of about §5 Million) by 
trading its Autumn Oaks Park to McDonald's in 
exchange for the Nature Sanctuary and a 
substantial payment in addition to the amounts 
stated above. It is contemplated that the 
Foundation shall purchase and obtain from the 
District a certain easement including covenants, 
conditions and restrictions concerning the 
preservation of the property as a nature 
sanctuary as set forth in a document between the 
Foundation and District entitled Grant of 
Conservation Right in Form of an Easement (the 
^Nature Easement"). 

Date: 

Subject: 

The Nature Sanctuary shall be known as the 
"Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature Sanctuary" (the 
"Sanctuary Name,"). At the time the District has 

Name: 

FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



the right to possession and the right to use all 
or a portion of the Nature Sanctuary (as is the 
case at the end of Mrs. Deans life estate or 
upon her releasing or conveying the same as 
contemplated below), the District shall cause 
appropriate signature to be installed at the 
entrance thereto identifying the Nature 
Sanctuary with the Sanctuary Name.. Such sign may 
also provide such other information as is 
appropriate to a District facility, but in any 
event, if such sign is installed during Mrs, 
Deans life time, it shall be first approved in 
writing by her. 

Future 
Gift: It is Mrs. Deans intention to release (or quit 

claim) her life estate to a substantial part of 
the Nature Sanctuary (described below as the 
iReleased Property) to the District during 
calendar year 2001 or at another time she 
designates. The effect of such release or 
conveyance shall be the termination of her life 
estate in the Released Property. Such 
termination shall be a contribution to the 
District so that the District shall then be the 
holder of the fee estate unencumbered by the 
life estate in the Released Property, and the 
District can then imrjediately use the Released 
Property for the public purpose of a nature 
sanctuary as described in the Nature Easement; 
upon Mrs. Deans notice to the District of such 
release or conveyance, the District shall accept 
the same. 

Released 
Property; The Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 

of Section 36, Township 39 North, Range 11, East 
of the Third Principal Meridian, in DuPage 
County, Illinois excepting there from: 

That portion of the Sast 500.70 feet of the 
South 435 feet of the North 960 feet of such 
Quarter Quarter Section (PIN 06-36-202-018) 
lying West of Salt Creek and an easement~?or 
ingress and egress for all forms of conveyance 
for the benefit of such excepted parcel. 

Use During 
Mrs. Deans 
Life Time: Upon the release or conveyance of the Released 

Property to the District by Mrs. Dean, the 
Released Property shall be used and maintained 
by the District in accordance with the Nature 
Easement for passive recreational uses (no 

2 
FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



11/02/1995 15:30 FROM H T D G S. M TO *095005817006379914B P.05 

baseball, football, soccer or other athletic 
fields), such as, by way of illustration and not 
limitation, a natural area and nature preserve 
<as such terms are defined in the Illinois 
Compiled Statutes, 525 ILCS 30/3.10 and 525 ILCS 
30/3.11) where people can walk, cross country 
ski, horse back ride and otherwise use the 
trails and pathways located thereon for foot and 
animal conveyance {no motorized forms of 
conveyance shall be allowed) to observe and 
enjoy the vegetation and wildlife there to be 
found. 

Use of 
the 
Buildings: After the expiration of Mrs. Deans life estate, 

the District shall, as long as it is 
economically feasible, use the barns, residence 
and other buildings on the Nature Sanctuary for 
the maintenance of the preserve and, as the 
District determines in its discretion that it 
has the financial means, develop such buildings 
as a nature center so that the public has a 
facility in it may receive education, 
instruction and otherwise learn about nature 
preservation, wildlife, vegetation, husbandry, 
and subjects and matters related to or part of 
our natural environment and its care. Included 
in such use may be, at the discretion of the 
District, childrens activities and interests, 
matters of interest to older adults and 
families, all consistent with the intentions 
expressed in the Nature Easement, 

Enforcement: During her life, the District acknowledges and 
grants that Mrs. Dean (in addition to the 
Foundation) may enforce the Nature Easement. At 
the expiration of the life estate of Mrs. Dean, 
the Foundation shall enforce the nature 
preservation easement, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions with a view to the intents and 
purposes expressed in this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

For that portion of the Nature Sanctuary subject 
to Mrs. Deans life estate, she shall keep and 
maintain the same as is consistent with a nature 
sanctuary as provided above, but subject to the 
reasonable use of the property for residential 
purposes and, in her discretion, for such other 
uses that a life tenant may enjoy under 
applicable law. Mrs. Dean shall pay the real 
estate taxes on all portions of the Nature 
Sanctuary subject to her life estate. 

Upkeep: 

3 FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



7 " 

• .  

Tax 
Assess
ment: ' The District shall cooperate with Mrs. Dean In 

requesting the local and county assessment 
authorities to reduce the tax assessment on the 
Nature Preserve taking into account the 
ownership of the District, the life estate of 
Mrs. Dean, the provisions of this Memorandum of 
Understanding, the Nature Easement and other 
relevant matters concerning the assessment of 
the property for real estate tax purposes. 

Oak Brook Park District, an 
incorporated Illinois general 
park district 

Conservatfliori Foundation of 
DuPag^fc/unty,.and Illinois 
not-fompro^it corporation 

oM- r '  61̂  By: By: 
President Its Chairman 

-^Dorothy Dfcan 

•> 

4 

FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 

TOTAL P.06 



I approve the provisions of the Grant of Conservation 
Right in the Form of an Easement a copy of which is attached 
hereto. 

ry 1 
Dorothy\Dean 

Date: 

V. _ 

FINAL DRAFT-01/12/96 



THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36# 
RANGE 11, LYING EASl' OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ILLINOIS, 

TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, 
IN DU PAGE COUNTY# 



9 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT EXHIBIT NO. 3 
 

[CONCEPT PLAN] 
  



           Exhibit No. 3    Concept Plan 
 

The prior location of the 
Dean Family Residence 
has been recommended 
as the future location of 
the Dorothy and Sam 
Dean Nature Education 
Center and the adjacent 
nature playground.  This 
location will minimize 
disturbance to the 
remnant and restored 
prairie habitats and is 
accessible by the 
existing driveway.  
 
The future one story, 
Dean Nature Education 
Center’s square footage 
shall not exceed the 
square footage of the 
original Dean family 
home of 4000 square 
feet. 

The future location of 
the restroom facilities 
will be located near the 
entrance of the 
sanctuary and gravel 
pave parking lot.  This 
area has minimal 
changes in elevation, 
making it conducive to 
building the restroom 
facilities. 

Approximate location of 
emergency access road. 

Dean Nature Sanctuary  
Conservation Easement Amendment 

October 15, 2018 



10 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT EXHIBIT NO. 4 
 

[APPLICATION] 
 
  



EXHIBIT 4 
APPLICATION 

January 8, 2018 

Brook McDonald, President/CEO 
The Conservation Foundation 
10 S 404 Knoch Knolls Road 
Naperville, IL 60565 

Re: Request for an amendment to the Conservation Easement at the Dean Nature Sanctuary 

Dear Brook McDonald and the Board of Trustees of the Conservation Foundation, 

When Dorothy Dean generously agreed for her property to become the Dorothy and Sam Dean Nature 
Sanctuary, she envisioned her property to be a sanctuary for the wildlife of DuPage County and her 
home and other buildings being used as an education center where the public could learn about the 
nature. 

After the Park District obtained stewardship of the property, the Board of Commissioners and staff hired 
the services of Pizzo and Associates to develop a master plan. With the assistance of an OSLAD Grant 
from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources and approval by the Conservation Foundation, the 
master plan restored the Dean Nature Sanctuary land to the native prairie, oak savannah and wetland 
habitats, and also provided an ADA fishing pier on the pond, a canoe/kayak launch on the Salt Creek, a 
crushed limestone walking trail which meanders by six interpretive gardens featuring the native plant 
life. To minimize water runoff and to preserve the water quality of the pond, a gravel pave parking lot 
was installed. These projects were completed in 2011 and the Dean Nature Sanctuary is currently 
enjoyed by the many visitors of families, youth groups, and nature enthusiasts. 

The Oak Brook Park District evaluated with high hopes for the possible use of the Dean home for a 
nature education center. Meetings were held with the Village of Oak Brook building and zoning, and 
additional analyses were completed to understand the requirements of bringing the home into 
compliance with current building codes. These evaluations determined that it would be financially 
challenging to bring the home into compliance. The Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners and 
leadership staff discussed the code issues with Conservation Foundation officers and it was determined 
that it would be more effective to demolish the home and in the future, build a new nature education 
center. The home was demolished in November 2011 and the home site has become a lovely field. 
During the 2012 Open House for the Dean Nature Sanctuary, this open field, was utilized for educational 
purposes. The event was well attended and confirmed the public's benefit of having an education center 
as Dorothy Dean envisioned. 



The Oak Brook Park District looks forward to future improvements at the Dean Nature Sanctuary, which 
is the reason for this letter. Currently, the conservation easement with the Conservation Foundation 
provides for the development of an educational facility by using the Dean Residence. The Oak Brook 
Park District is seeking an amendment to the conservation easement to permit the building of a nature 
education center and public restroom facility at the Dean Nature Sanctuary. 

The Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners has placed the building of the restroom facility on the 
capital improvements plan to occur within the next ten years. It has been envisioned that this facility would 
be built near the existing gravel pave parking lot, to minimize site impact and provide ease of access for Dean 
Nature Sanctuary visitors. 

A time frame for the building of the educational nature center has not yet been identified. It is envisioned for 
the education center to be built at a location that minimizes site impact and mitigates disturbances to the 
hydrological cycle. Though not yet identified by an engineering analysis, it is thought the prior location of the 
home may be a good location for the nature center. The nature education center's orientation and building 
exterior will maximize the use of natural lighting and passive strategies to lower energy use; and demonstrate 
ways to use resources like solar energy and water through the use of rainwater harvesting and building 
integrated photovoltaics. It is the park district's intent to create the nature learning center to maximize these 
learning opportunities as much as our financial resources will allow. 

The nature education center and restroom buildings will demonstrate sound environmental practice and 
designed to blend into the natural surroundings and topography. 

The Oak Brook Park District appreciates its partnership with the Conservation Foundation which has brought 
forth the amenities already being enjoyed by Dean Nature Sanctuary visitors. 

The Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners are respectfully requesting the Conservation Foundation 
Board's consideration of an amendment to the conservation easement to permit the building of these 
facilities for the educational benefit of visitors at the Dean Nature Sanctuary. 

Sincerely, 

Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 



11 
  DRM 11-07-18 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT EXHIBIT NO. 5 
 

[EASEMENT AMENDMENT POLICY] 



Conservation Easement Amendments 

The success of The Conservation Foundation's conservation easement program is dependent on 
landowner confidence that the Foundation will meet its obligation to monitor and enforce the 
terms of its easements. This confidence would be seriously eroded if the Foundation allowed 
modifications of its conservation easements that reduce the conservation values of the protected 
land. Easement amendments could also conflict with policies of the Internal Revenue Service. 

Therefore, it is the policy of The Conservation Foundation to hold and enforce its conservation 
easements as written. As such, it will permit amendments to easements only in exceptional 
circumstances. It is the expressed intent that this policy be based on the premise that an 
amendment reflects a change for the better. The amendment must never result in a net 
degradation of the conservation values the easement is designed to protect. Any request for 
an easement amendment will be reviewed according to the procedures set forth in this policy, 
and will be implemented where the Board of Trustees determines that: 

1) The requested modification is warranted under one or more of the Purposes set 
forth below; 

2) There are no feasible alternatives available to achieve that purpose; and 

3) It is the minimum change necessary to satisfy that purpose. 

Unless the amendment is requested by The Conservation Foundation, the landowner requesting 
the amendment shall pay all staff costs for the amendment, whether or not the request is 
approved; and, if approved, all additional costs for its implementation, if any. 

Purpose of Requested Amendment 
The Conservation Foundation will consider amendments to easements only if they satisfy one or 
more of the following circumstances: 

1) Enhanced protection. The proposed amendment would significantly enhance the 
resource protection of the easement. 

2) Prior agreement. In a few cases, a conservation easement may have a specific provision 
allowing modification of the easement at a future date under specific circumstances. Such 
agreements must be set forth in the conservation restriction document or in a separate 
document at the time the conservation agreement was executed. 

3) Correction of an error or ambiguity. The Foundation may authorize an amendment to 
correct an error or oversight made at the time the conservation easement was executed. 
This may include, but is not limited to, a misspelling, correction of a legal description, 
inclusion of standard language or exhibits unintentionally omitted, and clarification of 
ambiguous language or obsolete terms. 

4) Clarification or upgrade of easements. The Foundation or Grantor may seek to modify 
an easement in such a way as to conform to current standards and/or formats. 

5) Settlement of condemnation proceedings. Easements held by the Foundation may 
become subject to condemnation proceedings. Where it appears that the condemnation 
power would be properly exercised, the Foundation may enter into a settlement 
agreement with the condemning authority in order to avoid the expense of litigation. In 
reaching such an agreement, the Foundation shall attempt to preserve the intent of the 



original conservation easement to the greatest extent possible. In the event that the 
Foundation is compensated for the extinguishment or amendment of a conservation 
easement, the Foundation shall use the funds to further conservation activities in its 
service area. 

6) Amendments consistent with conservation purpose and values. The Foundation may 
authorize other modifications of a conservation easement if the modification is consistent 
with the statement of purpose contained within the easement document, and if the new 
level of protection of conservation values provided by the amended easement is the same 
or greater than that provided by the easement before the amendment. 

Procedures for Requesting an Amendment 
Either The Conservation Foundation or the landowner may propose an amendment. Any 
landowner seeking a modification of an existing conservation easement shall file a request in 
writing with the Foundation stating what change is being sought and the specific reasons it is 
needed or warranted. Where appropriate, the request shall also be accompanied by a map and 
other documentation. Unless waived by the Board of Trustees, the request shall also be 
accompanied by a payment of $500 to cover the Foundation's costs. Any unexpended portion of 
the fee shall be refunded; the landowner shall be responsible for all costs exceeding the initial 
fee, including staff and legal costs. 

The President/CEO shall review all requests and, where appropriate, refer them to the staff for 
evaluation, site visit and recommendation. The review shall include consultation with the 
Foundation's legal counsel and, when feasible, with the principal parties to the original 
agreement, including the landowner who donated or sold the easement, any town or state agency 
that contributed funds to the acquisition, and any persons who supported the acquisition through 
financial gifts. 

TCF staff, President/CEO and legal counsel will review the amendment to determine if the 
proposed amendment is consistent with the terms of this Land Preservation Policy and will make 
a recommendation to the Board of Trustees for final action. 

The Board of Trustees shall approve, approve with modification, or reject the request for 
amendment at its next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special meeting called for that 
purpose. Notification of the decision by the Board of Trustees will be forwarded in writing to the 
party proposing the amendment. 

WP f ri tvsnnwi u.i\ J J v UMMTtON 

The Conservation Foundation 
10 S 404 Knoch Knolls Road • Naperville, Illinois 60565 • (630) 428-4500 





1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-0617 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAK BROOK 
PARK DISTRICT AND CONSERVATION LAND STEWARDSHIP, LLC., FOR 

NATURAL AREAS STEWARDSHIP PROJECT  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is authorized to enter contracts 

for supplies, materials and work (70 ILCS 1250/8-1); and  

 WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018, the District and Conservation Land Stewardship, LLC. (the 

“Contractor”) entered “An Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District and Conservation 

Land Stewardship, LLC. for Natural Areas Stewardship Project” (the “Agreement”), and Section 

3 of the Agreement provided that it could be extended for an additional year upon approval of such 

an extension by the District and the Contractor, and upon prior appropriation therefor; and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor and the District have now agreed to extend the Agreement by 

an Amendment to the Agreement, for an additional term of one (1) year through June 20, 2020, 

and the District has appropriated sufficient funds for such extension,   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Board of Park Commissioners of the District hereby approves a one (1) 

year extension of the Agreement, from June 21, 2019, to June 20, 2020, subject to the terms and 

conditions of an “Amendment to An Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District and 

Conservation Land Stewardship, LLC. for Natural Areas Stewardship Project" (the " 

Amendment"), and the President and Secretary of the District are hereby authorized, respectively, 

to execute and attest the Amendment in substantially the form attached hereto and made a part of 

this Resolution as Exhibit "A". 



 

 2 

Section 2.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 

Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval as provided by law.  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF JUNE, 2019. 

AYES:  _______________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: _______________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:  ____________________________________________ 

 
 
 
____________________________________ 
President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
 Secretary 
 
 
 
 



AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAK BROOK PARK 
DISTRICT AND CONSERVATION LAND STEWARDSHIP, LLC.  

FOR NATURAL AREAS STEWARDSHIP PROJECT  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") to "An Agreement Between the Oak Brook 
Park District and Conservation Land Stewardship, LLC. for Natural Areas Stewardship Project” 
(the "Agreement"), is made and entered into by and between the Oak Brook Park District (the 
District") and Conservation Land Stewardship, LLC. (the “Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Agreement was entered between the District and the Contractor and dated 
June 20, 2018, for services to be provided by the Contractor for the Natural Areas Stewardship 
Project at the District’s Dean Nature Sanctuary; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3, the term of the Agreement was to be from the 
execution of the Agreement through June 20, 2019; provided, however, that the Agreement could 
be extended for an additional year, subject to the same terms and conditions, upon approval of 
such an extension by the Contractor and the District, and provided that sufficient funds are 
appropriated by the District for such extension; and  

WHEREAS, the Contractor and the District have agreed to an extension of one year for 
the Agreement, through June 20, 2020, and the District has appropriated sufficient funds for such 
extension,   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the District and the Contractor agree to the terms and 
conditions of this Amendment as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
THE RECITALS ARE PART OF THIS AMENDMENT 

The representations, covenants and recitations set forth in the foregoing recitals are 
material to this Amendment and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Amendment 
as though fully set forth in this Article I. 

ARTICLE II 
EXTENSION OF TERM OF AGREEMENT 

A. Section 3 of the Agreement is amended to extend the term of the Agreement until
June 20, 2020. 

B. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect. 

Exhibit A



 2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement this 17th day 
of June, 2019. 
 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT CONSERVATION LAND STEWARDSHIP, LLC 
  
 
By: _______________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Its President  Its: __________________________ 
     
Attest: ____________________________ Attest: _____________________________ 
 Its Secretary Its: __________________________ 





RESOLUTION NO. 19-0618 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAK BROOK 
PARK DISTRICT AND HAGG PRESS, INC. 

FOR SEASONAL BROCHURE PRINTING AND  
MAILING PREPARATION SERVICES 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is authorized to enter contracts 

for supplies, materials and work (70 ILCS 1250/8-1); and  

 WHEREAS, on May 21, 2018, the District and Hagg Press, Inc. (the “Printer”) entered an 

Agreement for Printing and Mailing Preparation Services (the “Agreement”), and Section 16 of 

the Agreement provided that it could be extended in one year increments for an additional two (2) 

1-year terms upon approval of such an extension by the District and the Printer, and upon prior 

appropriation therefor; and 

 WHEREAS, the District and the Printer have agreed to an extension of one year, and the 

District has appropriated sufficient funds for such extension,   

 WHEREAS, The District also requires certain modifications to the Services and, in 

accordance with Section 15 of the Agreement, any amendment or modification to the Agreement 

must be made in writing; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their respective best interest to amend 

the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Board of Park Commissioners of the District hereby approves a one (1) 

year renewal of the Agreement, from August 1, 2019, to July 31, 2020, subject to the terms and 

conditions of the "Amendment No. 1 to an Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District and 



2 

Hagg Press, Inc. for Seasonal Brochure Printing and Mailing Preparation Services" (the 

"Amendment"), 

Section 2. The Board of Commissioners of the District hereby approves the Modifications 

to the Services, subject to the terms and conditions of the “Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement 

Between the Oak Brook Park District and Hagg Press, Inc. for Seasonal Brochure Printing and 

Mailing Preparation Services”; and the President and Secretary of the District are hereby 

authorized, respectively, to execute and attest the Amendment in substantially the form attached 

hereto and made a part of this Resolution as Exhibit "A". 

Section 3.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 

Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval as provided by law.  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th Day of June, 2019 

AYES: ____________________________________ 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

____________________________________ 
President 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 



854891v1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT AND HAGG 
PRESS, INC. FOR SEASONAL BROCHURE PRINTING AND MAILING PREPARATION SERVICES 

This Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this ____ day of 
___________, 2019 (the "Effective Date"), by and between the Oak Brook Park District, an 
Illinois park district and unit of local government (the “District”), and Hagg Press, Inc., an Illinois 
corporation (“Vendor”), and amends, supplements and modifies the Agreement for Seasonal 
Brochure Printing and Mailing Preparation Services entered into between the District and 
Vendor dated May 21, 2018 (“Agreement”).  The District and Vendor are hereinafter sometimes 
individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”  Capitalized 
terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings assigned to 
such terms in the Agreement.   

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the District has hired Vendor to provide certain seasonal brochure printing 
and mailing preparation services (the “Services”) in accordance with the Agreement;  

WHEREAS, the current Term of the Agreement will expire on July 31, 2019; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16.B of the Agreement, the Parties may agree in 
writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Term, to extend the Term of the 
Agreement for an additional two (2), 1-year Renewal Terms; 

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their respective best interest to 
extend the Agreement for one (1) additional 1-year Renewal Term;  

WHEREAS, the District also requires certain modifications to the Services and, in 
accordance with Section 15 of the Agreement, any amendment or modification to the 
Agreement must be made in writing; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their respective best interest to 
amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises 
hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated
by reference into this Amendment as though fully set forth herein, and all covenants, terms, 
conditions, and provisions of this Amendment shall be construed, interpreted, and enforced in 
accordance therewith. 

Exhibit A



2 
 

2. Term.   The Agreement is renewed for one (1) additional 1-year Renewal Term, 
commencing on August 1, 2019 and, unless terminated earlier as provided in the Agreement, 
ending on July 31, 2020 (“First Renewal Term”).   

 
3. Modification to Services.  The following modifications shall be made to the 

Services: 
 a. Seasonal Brochures:   Vendor shall provide 5,300 Seasonal Brochure 

pieces per issue during the First Renewal Term and, in exchange, the District shall pay the 
Vendor $8,122.00.  Except as provided herein, all other terms of compensation as set forth in 
the Agreement shall remain the same.    

 
 b. Camp and Aquatics Guide:    
 

i. Vendor shall provide 1,000 Camp and Aquatics Guide during the 
First Renewal Term and, in exchange, the District shall pay the Vendor $1,912.00.  
Except as provided herein, all other terms of compensation as set forth in the 
Agreement shall remain the same.    

 
ii. Vendor shall deliver the Camp and Aquatics Guide directly to the 

District during the First Renewal instead of the Oak Brook Post Office.   Except as 
provided herein, all other requirements of the Camp and Aquatics Guide as 
specified in the Bidder’s Submittal Form shall remain the same.  

 
 4. Remaining Contract Provisions.  All other provisions, terms and conditions of the 
Agreement not amended by this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect without 
revision. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Amendment and the 
provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment will control.  
 
 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT    HAGG PRESS, INC. 
       
 
By: ______________________   By: _________________________ 
 
 
Its: _______________________   Its: _________________________ 
 
 
854891 



















































































































65

Applicant (Sponsor) Legal Name:

Project Title:

The (Sponsor) hereby certifies and acknowledges that it has the 
sufficient funds necessary (includes cash and value of donated land) to complete the pending OSLAD project within the 
timeframes specified herein for project execution, and that failure to adhere to the specified project timeframe or failure to
proceed with the project because of insufficient funds or change in local recreation priorities is sufficient cause for project 
grant termination which will also result in the ineligibility of the local project sponsor for subsequent Illinois IDNR outdoor 
recreation grant assistance consideration in the next two (2) consecutive grant cycles following project termination.

Acquisition and Development Projects

It is understood that the project must be completed within the timeframe established.  The OSLAD 
timeframe is two years as is specified in the project agreement. The Billing Certification Statement must 
be submitted within 45 days of the grant expiration date and the last reimbursement request must be 
submitted within one year of the grant expiration date.  Failure to do so will result in the Project Sponsor 
forfeiting all project reimbursements and relieves IDNR from further payment obligations on the grant.

The (Sponsor) further acknowledges and certifies that it will comply with all
terms, conditions and regulations of 1) the Open Space Lands Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) program (17 IL Adm. 
Code 3025); 2) the Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act (30 ILCS 705); 3) the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance & Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) and/or the Illinois Displaced Persons Relocation Act (310 ILCS 40 et. 
seq.), as applicable; 4) the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 et.seq.); 5) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
(P.L. 83-352); 6) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (P.L. 94-135); 7) the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1988, (P.L. 100-
259); and 8) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (PL 101-336); and will maintain the project area in an attractive and 
safe condition, keep the facilities open to the general public during reasonable hours consistent with the type of facility, cease 
any farming operations, and obtain from the Illinois DNR written approval for any change or conversion of approved outdoor 
recreation use of the project site prior to initiating such change or conversion; and for property acquired with OSLAD 
assistance, agree to place a covenant restriction on the project property deed at the time of recording that stipulates the property 
must be used, in perpetuity, for public outdoor recreation purposes in accordance with the OSLAD programs and cannot be sold 
or exchanged, in whole or part, to another party without approval from the Illinois DNR, and that development at the site will 
commence within 3 years.  

BE IT FURTHER PROVIDED that the (Sponsor) certifies to the best of its  
knowledge that the information provided within the attached application is true and correct.   

This Resolution of Authorization has been duly discussed and adopted by the (Sponsor)

on the day of (month), (year)

Name (printed / typed)

Attested by:
Signature

Date:
Title

OSLAD Grant Program 
Resolution of Authorization

Form OS/DOC-3

Resolution 19-0619





 
855352.1 

RESOLUTION  NO. 19-0620 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING STAFF  
TO PROCEED WITH REZONING OF PROPERTY  

COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE MCDONALD’S PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, on November 6, 2018, the voters of the Oak Brook Park District (“Park District”) 
approved a referendum to borrow funds necessary to acquire and preserve as open space certain 
real property commonly known as the McDonald’s Property and legally described in Exhibit A 
(“Property”); and,  
 
WHEREAS, on February 6, 2019, the Park District closed on the purchase of the Property and 
took possession thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned in the Village of Oak Brook (“Village”) as ORA1, 
an industrial district principally intended for uses described as manufacturing, fabricating, 
processing, assembly, repairing, storing, cleaning, servicing or testing of materials, goods or 
products; and  
 
WHEREAS,  all park and open field recreational uses are special uses in the ORA1 District; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Park District is in the process of developing plans for the Property, which  are 
intended to promote strictly recreational uses, and intends to use the Property exclusively for 
recreational purposes in perpetuity; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Village’s CR Conservation/Recreation District is “designed to encourage the 
development of land for open space recreational activities and/or preserve natural resources,” and 
identifies open field recreational activities and related accessory structures and uses as permitted 
uses.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1:  The Park District Board of Park Commissioners hereby finds and determines that 
rezoning the Property from ORA1 to CR Conservation/Recreation District is in the best interest of 
the Park District.  
 
Section 2:  Park District staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with rezoning of the 
Property from the Village’s ORA1 zoning district to the Village’s CR Conservation/Recreation 
zoning district, with the assistance of the District’s legal counsel and architectural consultants.  
 
Section 3:  All prior resolutions, motions, and orders of the Park District in conflict with any of 
the terms hereof, are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.  
 
Section 4:  All provisions of this Resolution shall be deemed to be severable.  Should any section 
or part of this Resolution be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 



 
855352.1 

the remaining part or parts of such section and/or the other sections, as the case may be, shall 
nevertheless be valid, binding and subsisting.  
 
Section 5:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and 
approval by the Board of Park Commissioners.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of ___________, 2019 by the Oak Brook Board of 
Park Commissioners. 
 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Ayes:  ____________________________________ 

Nays:  ____________________________________ 

Absent:  ___________________________________ 

Abstain:  __________________________________ 

 
By:              
 
______________________________      
President, Oak Brook Park District,  
Board of Park Commissioners 
 
ATTEST:    
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary, Oak Brook Park District, 
Board of Park Commissioners 
 
  



 
855352.1 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of 
the Oak Brook Park District, DuPage County, Illinois, and as such I am the keeper of the records 
and files of the Board of Park Commissioners of said Park District. 
 

I further certify that the foregoing is a full, true and complete copy of Resolution No. 19-
0620 titled,   

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING STAFF  

TO PROCEED WITH REZONING OF PROPERTY  
COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE MCDONALD’S PROPERTY 

  
 
adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Oak Brook 
Park District, held at Oak Brook, Illinois at 6:30 p.m. on the ____day of ________, 2019. 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said Resolution 
were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said Resolution was taken openly, that 
said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice 
of said meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that said meeting 
was called and held in strict compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State 
of Illinois, as amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, 
as amended, and that the Board has complied with all the provisions of said Act and said Code and 
with all the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto affix my official signature at Oak Brook, Illinois, 
this ____ day of _______, 2019. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Board Secretary, Oak Brook Park District 

 
  



 
855352.1 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF  
MCDONALD’S PROPERTY 

 
Lots 1 and 2 in McDonald’s Autumn Oaks Subdivision, being a part of Section 26, Township 39 
North, Range 11, East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded 
June 22, 1990 as Document No. R90-77300 in DuPage County, Illinois. 
 
1315 Kensington:  06-26-102-008 
1425 Kensington:  06-26-102-009 
 
 


	May 20, 2019 Agenda
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.

	Agenda Vote May 20, 2019
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.
	May 20, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.

	April 15 2019 regular meeting minutes
	April 15, 2019 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	#1-April 2019 General Fund
	#2-April 2019 Recreation Fund
	#3-April 2019 Tennis Fund
	#4-April 2019 Consolidated Charts
	#5-INCOME STATEMENT YTD APRIL 2019
	#6-Consolidated Agency Treasurer's Report April 2019
	#7-CONSOLIDATED AGENCY BALANCE SHEET APRIL 2019
	#8-INVESTMENTS APRIL 2019
	#9-CAPITAL EXPENDITURES April 2019
	Warrant 623
	Petty Cash Corporate May 2019
	Sheet1

	Petty Cash Recreation May 2019
	Sheet1

	2019 May Update Strategic Plan
	April AIM 2019
	Finance Department Memo- April 2019
	May 2019 Board Report USE
	Aquatic Board Stats
	Swim lessons
	Birthday Parties

	April 2019 Athletic Field Revenue Report
	Sheet1

	Board Facility Stats Comparison New Chart 2018-2019 (002)
	Facility Statistics

	Facility Usage
	Sheet1

	Update Non Staff Membership 2016-2019 Stats
	Sheet2

	April 2019 report
	Unfinished May 2019
	SurplusProp Ordinance 19-0520.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE DECLARING

	Bid Opening Synopsis - Tennis Center AHU # 3 and Interior Remodeling - Board Review.pdf
	Sheet1

	R 19-0617  renew Conservation Land Stewardship for Natural Areas Stewardship.pdf
	Secretary

	R19-0618 -Renew term & modify services Brochure Printing & Mailing Services - Hagg Press 2019-2020.pdf
	Secretary

	R 19-0620 DOCS-#855352-v1-Resolution_No_2019-0620_Authorizing_Rezoning McDonald's - CPN.pdf
	Ayes:
	Secretary, Oak Brook Park District,
	Board of Park Commissioners




